PNG LNG HIDES 4 APDL 7 LICENCE BASED BENEFITS SHARING AGREEMENT

HIDES 4 APDL 7 LICENCE BENEFITS SHARING AGREEMENT

BETWEEN

THE INDEPENDENT STATE OF PAPUA NEW GUINEA (of the First Part);

AND

THE SOUTHERN HIGHLANDS PROVINCIAL GOVERNMENT (of the Second Part)

<u>AND</u>

KOMO LOCAL LEVEL GOVERNMENT (of the Third Part)

<u>AND</u>

THE HIDES 4 APDL 7 LICENCE PROJECT AREA LANDOWNERS referred to in of

Schedule 1 of this Agreement. (of the Fourth Part)

CONTENTS

Clause		Title	Page
1.	General		
	1.1	UBSA	
	1.2	Cooperative Development	9
2.	Definitions		10
	2.1	General	13
	2.2	Definition used in the LNG Project Gas Agreement	15
	2.3	Definitions used in the CDOA	15
	2.4	Definitions used in the UBSA	15
3.	Interp	retation	16
	3.1	Rules of interpretation	16
4.	Scope		
	4.1	Effective Date and Term	17
	4.2	LNG Project Licences	17
5.	Forum Process and Representation		17
	5.1	Requirements of the Act	17
	5.2	Requirements of Forum Process (Prior Informed Consent)	18
	5.3	Project Area Landowners	18
	5.4	Southern Highlands Provincial Government	20
	5.5	Local-Level Provincial Government	20
6.	Benefit Package and Distribution		21
	6.1	CDOA and Kroton Equity Benefits	21
	6.2	Equity Benefits Distribution Mechanism	21
	6.3	Re-determination and Review	24
	6.4	Royalty	25
	6.5	Business Development Grant	27
	6.5A	Umbrella Association	30
	6.6	Development Levy	31
	6.7	Infrastructure Development Grant	31
	6.8	Future Generation Management	33
	6.9	Future Generation Fund Management	33
7.	Tax Cı	redits	34
8.		gement of Benefits	34
	8.1	Trustee Arrangement for Equity	34

	8.2	Trustee Arrangement for Royalty	36
	8.3	Representation at LNG Project Ventures Meetings	36
9.	Local	Supplies and Business Development	37
	9.1	Local Supplies and Business Development	37
	9.2	Consultation on the National Content Plan	38
	9.3	Landowner Companies	38
	9.4	Regulation of LNG Project Related Business Development	39
	9.5	Local Business Development Monitoring Committee	39
10.	Emplo	oyment and Training	40
11.	Suppo	ort for Land Access	42
12.	Imple	mentation Mechanism	43
	12.1	Expenditure Implementation Committee ('EIC')	43
	12.2	Economic Corridor Implementation Agency (ECIA)	43
13.	Econo	omic Corridor Implementation Agency (ECIA)	44
14.		nance, Accountability and Coordination of Projects	
	and P	rograms	45
15.	Enviro	onment and Relocation	46
16.	South	ern Highlands Provincial Government (SHPG)Undertakings	46
	17.1	Representation	46
	17.2	Support for Project	46
	17.3	Project Security	47
18		Level Government (LLG) Undertakings	47
	18.1	Representation	47
	18.2	Support for the Project	47
	18.3	Project Security	48
19.	Projec	ct Area Landowner Undertakings	48
20.	Indep	endent Issues Committee	49
20A	PNG LN	IG clan vetting and Land Group Incorporation	49
21.	Comm	nunication	50
22.	Gover	ning Law and Jurisdiction	50
23.	Severa	ability Provisions	50

24.	Provisions Relating to Hela Province	50
25.	Agreements and Addendums	52
26.	Alternative Dispute Resolutions	53
27.	Inconsistency Provisions	53
28.	Review Clause	53
29.	Execution and Counterparts	54
EXECUTION CLAUSE 5		55
Schedules		

Schedule 1 – List of Affected Area Representatives

PNG LNG HIDES 4 APDL 7 LICENCE BASED BENEFITS SHARING AGREEMENT THIS AGREEMENT is made the ________day of December 2009 BETWEEN: THE INDEPENDENT STATE OF PAPUA NEW GUINEA ("the State") of the first part; AND THE SOUTHERN HIGHLANDS PROVINCIAL GOVERNMENT (SHPG) of the second part AND KOMO LOCAL LEVEL GOVERNMENT (of the Third Part)

<u>AND</u>

THE HIDES 4 APDL 7 LICENCE PROJECT AREA LANDOWNERS referred to in Schedule

1 of this Agreement. (of the Fourth Part)

WHEREAS

- A. The State signed the PNG LNG Gas Agreement on 22nd May 2008 with the LNG Project Companies. This Agreement provides the commercial and fiscal terms for the PNG LNG Project.
- B. The PNG LNG Coordinated Development and Operating Agreement (CDOA) signed amongst the LNG Project Companies provide the essential commercial framework for the LNG Project. The CDOA defined the commercial concepts and the desire of the LNG Project Companies to jointly develop various gas fields and the associated gas from oil fields.
- C. The State, the affected Provincial Governments, the affected Local Level Governments and the affected Project Area Landowners signed the Umbrella Benefits Sharing Agreement in Kokopo on 23rd May 2009 ("UBSA").
- D. The parties acknowledge that the signing of the PNG LNG Umbrella Benefit
 Sharing Agreement was an important milestone in the project schedule.
- E. The parties acknowledge that the State has the stewardship for working with the LNG Project Companies to progress and bring it to fruition.
- F. The Parties recognize that Project Area Landowners, Provincial Governments (PGs) and Local Level Governments (LLGs) are important stakeholders for the success and stability of the LNG Project
- G. The Parties recognise the need to adhere to the project schedule and to work cooperatively and expeditiously to this end.

- H. The Parties acknowledge that the signing of the PNG LNG LBSA in Hides 4, Southern Highlands Province is an important milestone in the project schedule.
- The Project Area Landowners, PGs and LLGs recognise that the PNG LNG Project is an integrated project and it was necessary to capture under the Umbrella Benefit Sharing Agreement the basis for sharing of their benefits under existing laws and any additional benefits provided by the State.
- J. The Parties recognise that PNG LNG Project is of national importance and the benefits accruing to the State are for the collective benefit of the people of Papua New Guinea.
- K. The Project Area Landowners, affected PGs and LLGs are entitled to certain benefits under existing policies, laws and agreements, in particular the sharing of benefits provided by the State under the UBSA and this Agreement.
- L. The Parties understand that this Agreement capture the sharing of benefits allocated to Hides 4 APDL 7 under the Umbrella Benefit Sharing Agreement.
- M. This Agreement records the sharing of benefits between the Project Area Landowners, the SHPG and LLGs, following a process of consultation, awareness conducted by DPE and the UBSA Forum process of consultation and agreements reached under the UBSA, resulting in the Development Forum and the signing of this Agreement pursuant to Section 48 of the Oil and Gas Act (as amended).

1. GENERAL

1.1 UBSA

The parties agree that:-

- the Terms of the UBSA are incorporated and effected into this Licence Based Benefits Sharing Agreement or Development Agreement;
- (ii) There are no new, additional commitments or Benefits offered by the State at this Licence Based Forum;
- (iii) This Licence Based Forum is primarily to allow the National Government to facilitate the sharing of benefits packages, agreed at Kokopo as applied to the Hides 4 APDL 7 Licence area; and
- (iv) The Project Area Landowners remain as detailed in Schedule 1 of this Agreement and is subject to Ministerial determination of the ILG beneficiaries.

1.2 Cooperative Development

The Parties recognise and expressly acknowledge that:-

(i) The rationale and principles stipulated in the CDOA especially the basis for cooperative development of underlying fields, energy contribution, basis of equity determination, provision for re-determination and the integrated nature of the PNG LNG Project from upstream to pipeline to liquefaction plant are fundamental to the commercial structure of the LNG Project;

- (ii) Cooperative development means that the timing of benefits accruing from equity is detached from the timing of actual development and gas production from a specific field/PDL;
- (iii) All benefits, referred to in this Agreement are wholly dependent on the continuation of the production and sale of gas by the LNG Project, and if production and sale of gas is interrupted, suspended or discontinued, all benefits conferred by this Agreement and the Licence Based Benefits Sharing Agreements shall be interrupted, suspended or discontinued until such time as production and sale of gas is resumed by the LNG Project;
- (iv) This Agreement has been executed in accordance with Part IV of the Oil and Gas Act and [in compliance with the Consent Orders dated 28th of April 2009 in Proceedings Digimu Landowners Association Inc –v- Rendle Rimua & 3 Ors OS No. 201 of 2009];
- (v) This agreement is contingent upon the LNG Project successfully progressing into final investment decision, financial close and commencement of commercial production;
- (vi) If LNG Project Companies abandon or put on hold the LNG Project, this Agreement will be terminated or put on hold and the State will have no obligation to confer benefits described in this Agreement.

2. **DEFINITIONS**

2.1 General

In this Agreement, the following definitions apply unless the context otherwise requires:

"Act" means the Oil and Gas Act 1998, as amended.

"Buffer Zone" has the same meaning given by the Act

"CDOA" means the Coordinated Development and Operating Agreement signed between the LNG Project Companies on 13 May 2008 in relation to the LNG Project.

"DPE" means the Department of Petroleum and Energy or such other successor Department responsible for petroleum matters.

"FEED" means the Front End Engineering and Design phase of the LNG Project.

"FRPG" means Fly River Provincial Government;

"Gas" means natural gas as defined in the Act;

"GPG" means Gulf Provincial Government;

"Hela Province" means the proposed Hela Province that will gain full political and legal status as a province upon completion of all political and legal processes and after the 2012 National General Election;

"ILGs" means land groups incorporated under the Land Incorporated Groups Act (Chapter 147) by the Project Area Landowners and

recognised by the Minister through a Ministerial Determination pursuant to the Act.

"IPBC" means the Independent Public Business Corporation of Papua New Guinea as established by the *Independent Public Business* Corporation of Papua New Guinea Act 2002.

"Kokopo Umbrella Benefit Sharing Agreement Forum" or "the UBSA Forum" means the consultative group meetings held over a period of three to four weeks from April to May 2009 leading to the execution of the Umbrella Benefit Sharing Agreement (UBSA);

Kroton No. 2 Limited ("Kroton)") means a company incorporated under the Companies Act 1997 and which is a wholly-owned subsidiary of IPBC.

"Licence Based Benefits Sharing Agreement" means Development Agreement provided for under Section 48 of the Act and refers to the Benefits Sharing Agreement/s executed pursuant to the Act and Clause 15 of the LNG Gas Agreement and executed at the Development Forums convened for negotiation and sharing of benefits between the Project Area Landowners, Provincial Governments and Local Level Governments from each Licence Area.

"LNG Gas Agreement" means the Agreement signed on 22nd May, 2008 between the State and the LNG Project Companies to develop the LNG Project,

"Minister" means the Minister for the time being responsible for administering the Oil and Gas Act or any preceding and succeeding act, as the context so requires.

"MRDC" means the Mineral Resources Development Company Limited established under the Mineral Resources Development (Privatisation) Act;

"Petroleum Processing Facility Licence Area (PPFL)" means the LNG Liquefaction Plant and Buffer Zone Area.

"PNG LNG Project Umbrella BSA" means the Umbrella Benefit Sharing Agreement executed between the parties on the 23rd of May 2009 that forms the basis on which Licence-Based Benefit Sharing Forums will be held and which is referred to in Clause 15 of the LNG Gas Agreement

"Project area landowners, landowners or project affected landowners" has the meaning given in the Act and for the purposes of this Agreement and in relation to the LNG Project shall denote:

- (i) those affected project area landowners of any part of a PDL which is an LNG Project Licence Area as described hereunder, or that PDL granted in respect of Hides 4 APDL 7,
- (ii) customary landowners owning land located within any pipeline easement defined in any <u>Pipeline Licence</u>, or owning land which is the subject of a <u>Petroleum Processing Facility</u>

 Licence in either case forming part of the LNG Project Area; and
- (iii) the customary landowners of the area of a Petroleum

 Development Licence, a Buffer Zone, a pipeline easement or a

Petroleum Processing Facility Licence, which area becomes part of the LNG project area.

"Project Area Landowner Representative(s)" means the representative(s) selected for Hides 4 APDL 7 Licence Benefit Sharing Agreement Forum Meetings under Clause 6 of this Agreement.

"SHPG" means Southern Highlands Provincial Government;

"UBSA" means the Umbrella Benefit Sharing Agreement signed at Kokopo on 23rd of May 2009;

2.2 Definition used in the LNG Project Gas Agreement

The following words when used in this Agreement have the meanings ascribed to them in the LNG Project Gas Agreement as in effect at the Agreement date:

```
"Affiliates"

"Conversion of Fields to LNG Project Fields";

"FEED";

"Field or gas field";

"Integrated project";

"LNG Project Fields";

"LNG Project Gas Pipeline";
```

```
"LNG Project";
"LNG Project Area";
"LNG Project Companies";
"LNG Project Decision";
"LNG Project Licensee";
"LNG Project Licence";
"LNG Project Liquefaction Plant";
"LNG Project Operations";
"LNG Project Petroleum"; and
"Upstream Facilities".
```

2.3 Definition used in the Coordinated Development and Operating Agreement

The following words when used in this Agreement have the meanings ascribed to them in the CDOA:

"Project Substances"

"Value Determination"; and

"Value Re-Determination".

2.4 Definition used in the UBSA

The following words when used in this Agreement have the meanings ascribed to them in the UBSA:

"Total Benefit Package"

"Equity Benefits"

"CDOA";

"Kroton Equity"

3. INTERPRETATION

3.1 Rules of Interpretation

The following rules of interpretation apply to this Agreement;

- (i) The headings do not affect the interpretation or construction of this Agreement;
- (ii) References to an act or provision of an act includes the amendments to that act for the time being in force and also to any legislation or regulation passed in substitution thereof;
- (iii) A reference to a Party to this Agreement or Parties to this Agreement includes that Party's or Parties' successors, and

permitted assigns and, where applicable, the Party's or Parties' legal personal representatives;

- (iv) references to a Recital, Clause, Schedule or Attachment are to a recital, clause, schedule or attachment of this Agreement;
- (v) if there is any conflict between the body of this Agreement and the Schedules or Attachments, the body of this Agreement prevails to the extent of the inconsistency; and
- (vi) if there is any inconsistency between the provisions of this Agreement and the Act, the Act will prevail to the extent of the inconsistency.
- (vii) A reference to conduct includes any omission and statement or undertaking, whether or not in writing.

4. SCOPE

4.1 Effective Date and Term

This Agreement commences on the date of its execution and will terminate on the earlier of:

- (i) the date the LNG Project Gas Agreement terminates; or
- (ii) the date the LNG Project Companies decide not to proceed with the LNG Project; or
- (iii) the date on which the UBSA will terminate as a consequence of the termination of the LNG Gas Agreement and/or the LNG

Project companies deciding not to proceed with the LNG Project.

4.2 LNG Project Licences

The LNG Project Licences are those licences referred to in Clause 4 (Scope) of the UBSA.

5. FORUM PROCESS AND REPRESENTATION

5.1 Requirements of the Act

The parties acknowledge that the law provides for the Social Mapping and Landowner Identification Studies (SMLIS) to be completed by the Project Developers or Licensees under Section 47 of the Act. A Development Forum is then convened by the Minister under Section 48 of the Act. And under Section 50A; Development Agreement must be signed at the conclusion of the Development Forum. Under Section 49 of the Act, the Minister must be satisfied with the SMLIS and socioeconomic studies before he invites the Project Area Landowners, Provincial Governments and Local Level Governments to the Development Forum. The Social Mapping Report for the Licence Area has been submitted and accepted by DPE, thus providing the basis for the Minister to convene the Hides 4 APDL 7 Licence Based Development Forum at Hides 4 wellhead near Para village.

5.2 Requirements of Forum Process (Prior to Informed Consent)

The Parties agree that this Development Agreement has been developed:

- (i) On the basis of consultation and negotiation between the landowners, Provincial Government and the State leading to the signing of the Umbrella Benefit Sharing Agreement at Kokopo on the 23rd of May, 2009;
- (ii) On the basis of consultation, field awareness and clan vetting exercise conducted by DPE LNG Team at the Project site with the Hides 4 APDL 7 Project Area Landowners beneficiaries and all issues relating to the impact of the LNG Project on the Project Area Landowners were discussed; and
- (iii) Accordingly, the Project Area Landowners have agreed to be represented by their representatives at the Development Agreement Forum to negotiate and to sign this Development Agreement.

5.3 Project Area Landowners

The parties acknowledge that:

- (i) the Minister's invitations to Project Area Landowner representatives were issued in accordance with the Act;
- (ii) Social Mapping and Landowner Identification Studies were undertaken by the LNG Project Companies and a clan vetting exercise was conducted by the DPE;
- (iii) All landowner representatives invited to attend the forum were selected by the clans themselves and are from clans within the Licence area identified pursuant to the exercises mentioned in (ii) above;

- (iii) there was at least women representatives selected by Project
 Area Landowners at a meeting organized by DPE in the field
 and the representative is from a clan identified in the Social
 Mapping and Landowner Identification Studies undertaken by
 the LNG Project Licencees and vetting exercise undertaken by
 the DPE; and
- (iv) a number of prominent persons in each Licence Area were selected in meetings organized by DPE for the Project Area Landowners to select Project Area Landowner representatives to attend the Licence BSA Forum discussions.

The parties further acknowledge that:

- (i) the quotas set by DPE for numbers of representatives who were invited by the Minister for this Licence Area were appropriate to the availability of conference facilities for the LBSA development forum meetings;
- (ii) the Project Area Landowner representatives at this Development Forum were authorized by Project Area Landowners of the Hides 4 APDL 7 Project Licence Area, at the meeting organised by DPE to negotiate this Agreement on behalf of their tribes or clans; and
- (iii) the authorization for these representatives to attend the LBSA Forum does not mean recognition by the State for them to perform other roles as the representatives of their clans and further the State is not responsible for any remuneration for the performance of any such roles on behalf of their clans.

5.4 Provincial Government

The Southern Highlands Provincial Government (SHPG) shall be represented by its Provincial Governor or his delegate who shall sign on behalf of the Southern Highlands Provincial Government.

5.5 Local-Level Government

- (i) The Komo LLG shall be represented by its President and in his absence by an authorized nominee, accompanied by a Ward Councilor or Councilors from the Project affected LLG area.
- (ii) The President of the Komo LLG is authorized to sign this Agreement for and on behalf of his LLG and in his absence an authorized nominee may sign.
- (iii) DPE has provided a quota for the numbers of representatives and other representatives to be selected by the Project Area Landowners in meetings organised by DPE in the Project Area and clan leaders and other representatives so selected are from clans identified in the Social Mapping and Identification Studies Report.

6. TOTAL BENEFITS PACKAGE

6.1 CDOA and Kroton Equity Benefits

(i) The equity benefits to all affected PNG LNG Project area Landowners, Provincial Governments and Local Level Governments are set out in the UBSA and consist of:-

- (a) an estimated 2.78% interest arising from entitlements by virtue of participating interest in the existing PDLs and by virtue of the 2% interest accruing to the Project Affected Landowners (CDOA Equity);
- (b) an estimated 4.22% equity by virtue of a commercial option for undivided and fixed shareholding of 25.75% in Kroton No.2 Limited;
- (ii) CDOA equity is to be shared between PDLs and Pipeline and Plant in the ratio of 72:28%;
- (iii) CDOA equity is to be shared between Landowners and LLGs of the Licence Area in the ratio of 90:10; and
- (iv) The CDOA equity and Kroton equity provided by the State are described in detail under Clause 6 of the UBSA.

6.2 Equity Benefits Distribution Mechanism

The Parties agree to the distribution mechanism of the Equity benefits as follows:

- (i) The equity benefit available to Affected Area Landowners and LLGs consist of the following:
 - (a) an estimated Project interest (CDOA equity) of 0.1694% provided by the State to be shared between the Landowners and LLGs in the ratio of 90:10;

- (b) an Equity option to acquire 2.32% in Kroton No.2

 Limited to Landowners provided by the State on

 commercial terms described under Clause 6 of the

 UBSA; and
- (c) the terms, definitions and details explanation of CDOA and Kroton Equity provided by the State are set out in Clause 6.2 and 6.3 of the UBSA.
- (ii) Clans in Hides 4 APDL 7 that were identified in the Social Mapping and Landowners Identification Report and the DPE clan vetting exercise have after two weeks of protracted negotiations, agreed to the regional distribution of CDOA Equity as follows:

Middle	17.778%
Tuguba	17.778%
Tawenda Tokaju	15.556%
Parepare-Ketere'anda	33.332%
Timala Kangulu	15.556%

- (iii) The relevant clans of the Licence Area acknowledge their relatives represented at the Hides 4 APDL 7 Licence Based Development Forum, living outside the Licence area and will endeavour to share their CDOA benefits from the LNG project with those said relatives;
- (iv) The relevant clans of the License Area acknowledge their desire to tithe up to ten percent (10%) of their CDOA benefits and will endeavour to do so pursuant to an appropriate distribution mechanism.

(v) Clans in identified in the Social Mapping and Landowners Identification Report and the DPE clan vetting exercise have after two weeks of protracted negotiations, agreed to the regional distribution of the Kroton Equity as follows:

Middle	17.778%
Tuguba	17.778%
Tawenda Tokaju	15.556%
Parepare-Ketere'anda & Ketere'anda	33.332%
Timala Kangulu	15.556%

- (vi) The relevant clans of the Licence Area acknowledge their relatives represented at the Hides 4 APDL 7 Licence Based Development Forums, living outside the Licence area and will endeavour to share their CDOA benefits from the LNG project with those said relatives;
- (vii) Following the Agreement for Kroton and CDOA equity sharing at the regional level the beneficiary clans or sub-clans of the Hides 4 APDL 7 Licence Area are required to complete their negotiations on benefits sharing within three (3) months from the date of the signing of this Agreement or 15 January 2010 (whichever occurs first). If agreement is not reached on benefit sharing amongst the beneficiary clans or sub-clans, then the Minister will determine benefit sharing for the clans or sub-clans in accordance with the Act;
- (viii) The Minister will confirm the recognised beneficiaries entitled to receive CDOA and Kroton equity benefits by publishing a Ministerial Determination in the National Gazette.

- (ix) The Clans recognised by the Minister have to be incorporated into ILGs for the purpose of receiving CDOA and Kroton equity benefits under the LNG Project.
- (x) The Clans agree that they will establish a special purpose authority, Hides Special Purpose Authority which will be their vehicle for the distribution of benefits under this Clause.

6.3 Re-Determination and Review of CDOA Equity

(i) The Parties acknowledge the agreement reached under the UBSA that equity interest in the LNG Project allocated to each Licence is partly determined by the Project Substances contributed from each PDL and will undergo adjustments in line with the re-determinations under the CDOA. However, the principles agreed under the UBSA will not change.

6.4 Royalty

- (i) A royalty of 2% calculated as per the provisions of the Act and the PNG LNG Gas Agreement is provided by the State to the Landowners, Provincial Governments and Local Level Governments.
- (ii) It is reaffirmed that under the UBSA, the royalty benefits provided by the State under the LNG Project will be shared between the affected PDL, Pipeline and Petroleum Processing Facility Licence Landowners, Provincial Governments and Local Level Governments.

- (iii) It is reaffirmed that under the UBSA that in term of sharing of royalty benefits:
 - in the first instance, the PDL Area and Pipeline and LNG
 Plant Area Landowners will share in ratio of 72:28 (PDL
 Area 72%, and Pipeline and LNG Plant Areas 28%);
 - (b) The 72% portion will be shared between PDL area landowners, and the affected PGs and LLGs in the ratio of 70:30 (with landowners getting 70% and affected PGs and LLGs getting 30%);
 - (c) The sharing of 30% of the royalty benefits will be negotiated and agreed between the PDL affected PGs and LLGs at a forum to be organised by the State as part of the BSA process;
 - (d) The sharing of 70% of the 72% royalty amongst the PDL area landowners was negotiated and agreed to in the UBSA. The 12% allocation for Hides 4 APDL 7 is determined under the CDOA and reflected in the UBSA. The PDL area landowners acknowledge their relatives living outside of the licence area and will endeavour negotiate and agree to share their 12% benefit with those said relatives during the Licence Based Development Forum
- (v) For purposes of Clause 6.3 (v) PGs refer to SHPG, FRPG and GPG and LLGs refer to Komo LLG, South Koroba LLG, North Koroba LLG, Hayapuga LLG, Hulia LLG, Lake Kutubu LLG, Erave LLG, West Kikori LLG and Nomad LLG.

(vi) Clans identified in the Social Mapping and Landowners Identification Report and the clan vetting exercise carried out by DPE, after two weeks of protracted negotiations, agreed to the distribution of royalty as follows:

Middle	17.778%
Tuguba	17.778%
Tawenda Tokaju	15.556%
Parepare-Ketereanda & Ketereanda	33.332%
Timala Kangulu	15.556%

- (vii) The relevant clans of the Licence Area acknowledge their relatives represented at the Hides 4 APDL 7 Licence Based Development Forum, living outside the Licence area and will endeavour to share their CDOA benefits from the LNG project with those said relatives;
- (xi) The relevant clans of the Licence Area acknowledge their desire to tithe ten percent (10%) of their Kroton equity benefits and will endeavour to do so pursuant to an appropriate distribution mechanism.
- (xii) Following the Agreement for Kroton and CDOA equity sharing at the regional and tribes level the beneficiary clans or subclans of the Hides 4 APDL 7 Licence Area are required to complete their negotiations on benefits sharing within three (3) months from the date of the signing of this Agreement or 15 January 2010 (which ever occurs first). If agreement is not reached on benefit sharing amongst the beneficiary clans, then

the Minister will determine benefit sharing for the clans, tribes and villages in accordance with the Act.

- (xiii) The Minister will confirm the recognised beneficiary clans entitled to receive CDOA and Kroton benefits by publishing a Ministerial Determination in the National Gazette.
- (xiv) The Clans recognised by the Minister have to be incorporated into ILGs for the purpose of receiving CDOA and Kroton equity benefits under the LNG Project.

6.5 Business Development Grant

- (i) The Parties to this Agreement note that the State agreed to make available under the UBSA an amount of Kina 120 million to assist landowners' companies in business development activities, in accordance with guidelines to be approved by NEC and Section 171 of the Act.
- (ii) The Parties further note that the National Executive Council has apportioned the sum of K120 million to all Licence Area Landowners and consequently allocated K15 million to Hides 4 APDL 7 Licence area landowners under NEC Decision No. 59 of 2009.
- (v) The Parties that the Business Development Grant shall be made available in accordance with the guidelines to be approved by the National Executive Council.
- (iv) The Seed Capital Grant will be shared between the PDL area landowners and LNG Plant and Pipeline area landowners in

72:28 ratio respectively. For the avoidance of doubt, none of the PGs or LLGs will be beneficiaries to this grant. The State will give due recognition of the difference between a greenfield and a brown-field PDL while determining further apportionment of the seed capital funding amongst the PDL area landowners.

- (v) The Parties agree that an Umbrella LANCO will be established to represent all beneficiaries in Hides 4 APDL 7. The Umbrella LANCO is subject to the requirements of the IPA Act (1997), Social Mapping and Landowner Identification studies leading to a Ministerial determination of ILGs in the Hides 4 APDL 7.
- (vi) The Parties agree that the election of the ILG representatives will be conducted by the Electoral Commission of PNG and DPE.
- (vii) In the interim, the Umbrella LANCO will be governed by a Committee to be established with the assistance of DPE and the Electoral Commission in a meeting with the representatives listed under Schedule 1 of this Agreement.
- (viii) The interim Committee of the Umbrella LANCO will be selected from the following regions:
 - Middle 2
 Tuguba 2
 Tawenda Marako 2
 Parepare 2
 Ketereanda 2
 Timala Kangulu 2

Independent Member

(ix) The Department of Petroleum & Energy will report the results and resolutions of the meeting to establish the interim committee to the Minister for endorsement and recognition.

1

- (x) The interim Committee will be tasked with establishing the Umbrella LANCO.
- (xi) The establishment of the Umbrella LANCO and the election of the LANCO Board members and officers shall be in accordance with Clause 6.5 (v); (6.5 (vi) and 6.5 (ix).
- (xii) After the establishment of the Umbrella LANCO the interim Committee, the DPE and the Electoral Commission will at the earliest possible time jointly call the first ILD Representative Meeting where they shall table a report detailing the establishment of the Umbrella LANCO. The ILG Representatives Meeting shall then be converted to a Shareholders Meeting whereby the ILG representatives shall elect officer bearers for the Umbrella LANCO and carry out further requirements of the Companies Act 1997.

6.5A Umbrella Association

(i) The Parties agree that an Umbrella Company representing Landowners in Hides 4 APDL 7 will be established to oversee their overall welfare and social wellbeing, in accordance with the Associations Incorporation Act 1966; and the procedures and processes and representations set out in Clause 6.5(v) and subsequent Clauses.

6.6 Development Levy

- (i) A development levy of 2% calculated as per the provisions of the Act and the PNG LNG Gas Agreement is made available to the Provincial Governments and the Local Level Governments.
- (ii) It was agreed under the UBSA that the PDL PGs and LLGs will share the development levy with the Pipeline and LNG Plant PGs and LLGs in the ratio of 72:28 (that is 72% will be received by the PDL PGs and LLGs and 28% will be received by the Pipeline and LNG Plant PGs and LLGs.
- (iii) However, the disbursement of the development levy is subject to Clause 6.10 and 6.11 of the UBSA; noting that the SHPG has sought judicial review of the distribution mechanism stipulated under the Organic Law.

6.7 Infrastructure Development Grant

- (i) The parties to this Agreement acknowledge that the State agreed under the UBSA to an amount of Kina 1.2 billion allocated equally over two (2) five year periods, commencing 2010 or the date of the LNG Project Decision (whichever is the earlier), for infrastructure development and maintenance in the affected Provinces, in accordance with Section 173 of the Act.
- (ii) The parties to this Agreement agreed that the infrastructure grant approved by the National Government for Southern

Highlands Province will be utilized to fund projects at the PDL Projects Site, the LLG areas and in other parts of the Provinces.

- (iii) The Parties agree that the amount of K100 million will be allocated to the Hides 4 APDL 7 project area landowners, Local Level Government and the Provincial Government to fund projects which are subject to Implementation mechanism referred to in Clause 13 of this Agreement. The projects identified are as follows:
 - a) Hulia Benaria Road;
 - b) Margarima to Kandep Road sealing;
 - c) Komo Township (2nd & 3rd Phase);
 - d) Hiri-Lai Road Sealing);
 - e) Hides 4 Growth Centre;
 - f) Agriculture Projects;
 - g) Emanapi Eco Tourism Centre;
 - h) Tombete Community Centre;
 - Housing Resettlement;
 - j) Para Health Centre;
 - k) Para Tawanda Bosavi Road;
 - l) Rural Electrification;
 - m) Rural Water Supplies Program;
 - n) Gangulu Haliago Road;
 - o) Komo Womad Road;
 - p) Markets Program;
 - q) Komo Top-Up School;
 - r) Walagu Health Centre;
 - s) Kukupalu Community Centre
 - t) Kukupalu Top-Up School
 - u) International School

- v) Tiute Top-Up School
- w) Hides 4 Library
- x) Wild Life Management
- y) Hides 4 Resource Centre
- z) Hongote Police Station
- aa) Tagali Bridge
- bb) Hibagu Tagali Foot Bridge
- cc) Komo Coffee Project
- (iv) The parties to this Agreement acknowledge that the implementation of infrastructure projects in Hides 4 APDL 7 will be subject to the Implementation mechanism referred to in Clause 13 of this Agreement.

6.8 Future Generation and Investment Trust Fund Percentage

- (i) The Parties agree that in compliance with Section 176 of the Act;
 - (a) 30% of equity and royalty benefits will be set aside for future generations trust fund, and
 - (b) a further 30% of equity and royalty benefits will be forCommunity Infrastructure trust fund.

6.9 Future Generation Fund: Management

(i) The Parties agree that subject to an NEC decision on this matter and the review provision under Clause 9 of the UBSA, the amounts assigned for future generation and community infrastructure will be managed by a corporate trustee managed by MRDC. Proper governance mechanism for

transparency, accounting, and audit and management representation will be put in place before the LNG Project Decision.

(ii) the amounts assigned for future generation and community investment will be managed by a separate independent and professionally managed trust. Proper governance mechanism for transparency, accounting, and audit and management representation will be put in place before LNG Project Decision.

7. TAX CREDIT

- (i) Where the State agrees, to fund priority projects in Hides 4 APDL 7 under the Tax Credit Scheme the State will ensure that the operator of the LNG Project manages the implementation of the Tax Credit Projects in accordance with Section 219C of the Income Tax Act 1959 (as amended).
- (ii) The State will use reasonable efforts to have tax credit projects are approved within reasonable a period and in accordance with the Tax Credit Scheme.

8. MANAGEMENT OF BENEFITS

8.1 Trustee Arrangements for Equity

(i) The State undertakes to conduct through the Minister for Petroleum and Energy, a review of the current arrangement under this Clause by July 2010. The findings of such a review will be taken to the National Executive Council (NEC) and will form the basis on which NEC may determine any amendments,

as may be necessary, to such arrangements, taking into consideration Section 179 of the Act. The parties agree to abide by the decision of the NEC following such review.

- (iv) The CDOA Equity arising from new PDLs (including PDL 1 variation) and from the allocations made under Clause 6.3.1 and from the allocations made under this Agreement under clause 6.3.1 (iii) will be managed by MRDC with representation from the stakeholders.
- (v) Kroton No. 2 Limited shall be a clearing house and benefits will be paid direct to beneficiaries.
- (vi) The trustee companies, both under MRDC and newly established trust and the royalty trust under paragraph 9.2 of the UBSA will be subject to proper trust deed. In particular, the terms of the trust shall, at a minimum prescribe the following:
 - (a) Six (6) monthly audit by an independent firm of accountants;
 - (b) Regular rotation of trustee directors on a five yearly basis;
 - (c) Publication of half year and full year financial statements for the project area community;
 - (d) The publication of the investment policy of the corporate trustee;

- (e) The publication of the dividend policy of the corporate trustee; and
- (f) Filing of full financial statements with the annual returns filed with the Registrar of Companies

8.2 Trustee Arrangements for Royalty

Subject to clauses 6.6, 6.7, 6.8 and 14 of the UBSA, the royalty entitlements of the Project Area Landowners, the affected LLGs and PGs shall be managed an entity agreed to by the NEC following the review and/or by the nominated trustee companies which are subsidiaries of MRDC. The trustee companies shall execute formal deeds of trust in favour of named beneficiary Project Area Landowners and affected LLGs. The LNG Project companies will pay royalty directly to the trustee company.

8.3 Representation at LNG Project Joint Ventures Meetings

- (i) Subject to Clause 9.1 of the UBSA, the interests of the Project Area Landowners; affected LLGs and PGs in the LNG Project with respect to CDOA Paid Equity will be represented by MRDC and/or an entity agreed to by the NEC following the review.
- (ii) The interest of the Project Area Landowners, affected PGs in the LNG Project with respect to Kroton Equity will be represented by Kroton No.2 Limited
- (iii) The royalty and equity benefits of the Hides 4 APDL 7 project area landowners will be managed by a wholly owned subsidiary of the Mineral Resources Development Company

(MRDC) and/or an entity agreed to by the NEC following the review and will consist of Directors who are Chairman of the ILGs to be invited by MRDC or this entity in accordance with its rules and procedures, to be on the Board of the said subsidiary company.

9. LOCAL SUPPLIES AND BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT

9.1 Local Supplies and Business Development

- (i) The parties acknowledge that in accordance with the PNG LNG Gas Agreement, the LNG Project Companies are required to prepare a local business development program in respect of the local supply and business development provisions in section 129 of the Act.
- (ii) The State will use reasonable efforts to ensure that the LNG Project Companies fulfill their obligations under Section 129 of the Act in developing and implementing a local business development program so that opportunities are provided to Project Area Landowners and other Papua New Guinea citizens to participate in business spin-off activities provided by the LNG Project.
- (iii) The State will ensure that the local business development program prepared by the LNG Project Companies for the purposes of the PNG LNG Gas Agreement will include proposals which:-
 - (a) facilitate the business opportunities of experienced service providers currently providing services within

the LNG Project Area or for the Project in reference to project dedicated facilities;

- (b) create business opportunities for project area landowners who do not currently conduct business within the gas project area;
- (c) create business opportunities for any umbrella project area companies involved in providing services to the LNG Project.
- (d) So far as practical, the LNG Project Companies shall give first preference to service providers whose place of origin is in the gas project area provided that they have the requisite experience, managerial and trade skills, and business capacity to perform the work.

9.2 Consultation on the National Content Plan

The State will use reasonable efforts to encourage the LNG Project Operator to convene a series of meetings in order to consult the landowners on the development and finalization of a national content plan before commencement of "Early Works".

9.3 Landowner Companies

The Parties acknowledge the undertakings under the UBSA in relation to participation by Landowner companies in providing services to the LNG Project:

- they must be financially and technically capable of the work they propose to perform;
- (ii) they must be able to provide their services competitively with international service providers on quality and price; and
- (iii) In accordance with the LNG Project operator business development plan, existing local companies must pre qualify as to skills and business abilities to be able to provide their services to the LNG Project.

9.4 Regulation of LNG Project Related Business Development

The Parties acknowledge the following requirements in relation to the regulation of the LNG Project related Business Development:

- (i) From the date of commencement of the LNG Project, the LNG Project Companies shall consult with DPE, Department of Commerce and Industry, and the Department of National Planning and Monitoring Development in relation to local procurement of goods and services, and the progress of the local business plan developed by the operator for the LNG Project.
- (ii) The Department of Commerce and Industry shall provide a detailed annual report of the activities of the landowner companies and a review of the LNG Project Operator business plan for the forthcoming calendar year and review the performance and success of each of the service providers which provide services to the LNG Project.

9.5 Local Business Development Monitoring Committee

- (i) Immediately following the execution of this Agreement, the State shall establish a committee to be chaired by the Secretary, Department of Commerce and Industry, entitled the Local Business Development Monitoring Committee to oversee, supervise and ensure that the obligations of all parties under this agreement are proceeding in full compliance with the terms and conditions agreed.
- (ii) The Committee will consist of senior representatives of key
 Departments of the State, the affected PG and 3 elected
 landowner representatives, MRDC, the Nominee Company of
 the State and at the discretion of the Chairman, a
 representative of the LNG project companies.

10. EMPLOYMENT AND TRAINING

- 10.1 The Parties to this Agreement accept and support the undertakings agreed under the UBSA in relation to employment and training as follows:
 - (i) The parties acknowledge that the LNG Project Companies are required to prepare training and localization programs to be approved by the Department of Labour and Employment or a Department responsible for training and employment matters and in accordance with that plan will, where foreign personnel are employed, progressively replace such foreign personnel with PNG citizens as expeditiously as possible.

- (ii) The State will endeavor to obtain from the LNG Project Companies, alternative or revised plans, where the training and localization programs are disrupted by circumstances or events which make it difficult or impractical to comply with the obligations under these programs to achieve the objectives of that part of the training and localization program which is affected.
- (iii) The State shall provide to the LNG Project Companies such assistance as required in the formulation of the training and localization programs and the recruitment of citizens and shall make available its facilities for vocational and technical training.
- (iv) The State may, after consultation with the LNG Project Companies, require those companies or any of their contractors, to take such numbers (considering the scale and nature of the LNG Project Operations) of the State's employees or the employees of a State nominee at any time for managerial, professional or technical training as is appropriate for the qualifications and experience of the employees.
- (v) The State shall, after consultation require Affiliates of the LNG Project Companies will use its best endeavours to ensure that the LNG Project Companies give first preference in training to citizens whose place of origin is in the LNG Project Area (Hela region and Southern Highlands) on behalf of the LNG Project Companies and shall assign such employees to suitable training positions, whether in Papua New Guinea or overseas.

- (vi) The parties acknowledge that the LNG Project Companies will not be obliged to retain any such assigned employees undergoing training who fail to perform duties appropriate to the assignment.
- (vii) So far as practical, the State will use reasonable efforts to ensure that the LNG Project Companies give first preference in employment to citizens whose place of origin is in the LNG Project Area provided that they have the requisite skill and capability to perform the work.
- (viii) The State will use its use reasonable efforts to ensure that, prior to the commencement of the LNG Project, the LNG Project Companies consult with the Department of Labour and Industrial Relations and provide reports annually concerning training and localization and the progress of the training and localization plan as part of the LNG Project.

11. SUPPORT FOR LAND PROCUREMENT AND ACCESS

- (i) The State shall procure all land needed for the infrastructure proposals provided herein and customary landowners will give full cooperation in ensuring full and free access to officials of the State and to representatives of the LNG Project Companies and their contractors in undertaking all tasks relating to the survey, acquisition, construction and use of such infrastructure.
- (ii) Project Area Landowners, affected PGs, and LLGs agree not to impede or otherwise take any action that could endanger any individual, property or the process of infrastructure construction and will extend

support and assistance to facilitate the expeditious and cost effective construction of all infrastructures.

- (iii) Project Area Landowners, affected PGs and LLGs recognize that fair land compensation will be made for the acquisition of such land from the Project Area Landowners since the construction of the roads and other infrastructure will bring considerable benefits to the provinces, local areas and will enhance the standard of living, business opportunities and facilities for local landowners.
- (iv) Project Area Landowners, affected PGs and LLGs acknowledge that LNG Project Companies will not be liable for any loss, damage, injury or death or such liability for claims which may arise from or be incidental to the use of the roads or other infrastructure by any person in any way whatsoever.
- (v) The parties recognize that certain roads and infrastructure to be constructed by the LNG Project Companies are solely for use associated with the LNG Project for the duration of the LNG Project and that there will be no public access to such roads and infrastructure until the LNG Project ceases to operate.
- (vi) The Parties agree to provide land for the purposes of construction of permanent residential settlement and permanent infrastructure services for employees of LNG Companies within the project area.

12. IMPLEMENTATION MECHANISM

12.1 Expenditure Implementation Committee ("EIC")

The parties acknowledge the following understanding reached by the representatives to the UBSA with regard to the Expenditure Implementation Committee (EIC):

- (i) That EIC plays an important role in implementing socioeconomic and infrastructure projects in compliance with the requirements of the *Public Finances (Management) Act 1995* and the Act.
- (ii) The parties agree that the EIC Guidelines are important in the implementation of the infrastructure projects either agreed under the Licence Based Benefits Sharing Agreements or any other infrastructure projects.
- (iii) The EIC will process and oversee the implementation of BSA infrastructure projects approved under each Licence Based Benefits Sharing Agreement.
- (iv) The project proposals submitted for funding under EIC Budget will only be approved by the EIC for expenditure when they are compatible with the EIC Guidelines and the Medium Term Development Strategy that is administered by the Department of National Planning and Rural Development and DPE.
- (v) The parties hereto agree that the EIC will be the authority responsible for the implementation of BSA infrastructure projects and that all projects to be undertaken are subject to the availability of funds.
- (vi) Where there is a change in law in relation to the EIC or as a result of a review under Clause 9, the parties agree to work

with and support any alternative implementing agency appointed by the State to succeed the EIC. The State will ensure that this alternative implementing agency complies with the requirements of this Clause.

13. ECONOMIC CORRIDOR IMPLEMENTATION AGENCY (ECIA)

The parties acknowledge that the process to establish the ECIA has commenced in accordance with NEC Decision 59/2009, and when formally established the ECIA will succeed the EIC and will be responsible for implementing the projects approved for funding under this Agreement.

14. GOVERNANCE, ACCOUNTABILITY AND COORDINATION OF PROJECTS AND PROGRAMMES

- (i) The parties agree that the benefits made available by the State under this LBSA are to be applied for the good of the present and future generations and are to be used to create a development base for the future.
- (ii) The parties agree that sound governance principles need to be put in place for proper accounting and use of benefits moneys.
- (iii) The parties agree that the development efforts by various agenciesthe National Government, donor agencies, LNG Project Companies, affected PGs and LLGs- need to be coordinated to deliver economic infrastructure, social infrastructure and empower people to carry out gainful economic pursuits.
- (iv) The State, in consultation with the representatives of the Beneficiary

 Groups will draw up an integrated development programs and

projects and will get professional assistance in drawing up business plans and budgets both for capital expenditure and operating and maintenance costs.

(v) The benefits under Clauses 6.1 (d), (e) and (f), 6.9 and 8 of the UBSA will be integrated and coordinated with National Government's Medium Term Development Strategy (MTDS) and Long Term Development Strategy (LTDS). The State with the approval of the NEC will draw up allocation, approval and governance process for monies granted under Clauses 6.1 (d) (e) and (f), 6.9 and 8.

15. ENVIRONMENT AND RELOCATION

- (i) The Parties acknowledge that an Environmental Plan has been approved for the PNG LNG Project in accordance with the Environment Act 2000.
- (ii) The Parties acknowledge that the relocation issue raised by the Hides 4 APDL 7 Licence area landowners and the State will as a matter of priority endeavour to facilitate meetings with the LNG Project Companies to address this issue.

16. SOUTHERN HIGHLANDS PROVINCIAL GOVERNMENT (SHPG) UNDERTAKINGS

16.1 Representation

The SHPG will be represented by its Governor or his delegate for all purposes required by this agreement.

16.2 Support for Project

- (i) The SHPG affirms that it will support the LNG Project and this Agreement and use its best endeavours to ensure support for the LNG Project and the Benefits Sharing Agreements by the Project Area Landowners and other people of Southern Highlands Province whether or not such people are direct beneficiaries, or indirect beneficiaries through infrastructure development throughout the Southern Highlands Province.
- (ii) The SHPG agrees to collaborate with the EIC to apply development levies that may be available to the Southern Highlands Province to implement projects approved through the Southern Highlands Province annual Budgets infrastructure commitments by SHPG under this Agreement and the Licence Based Benefits Sharing Agreements.

16.3 Project Security

The SHPG shall assist the National Government in addressing threats from Project Area Landowners and non-project area landowners against the LNG Project personnel and property.

17. LOCAL-LEVEL GOVERNMENT UNDERTAKINGS

The following commitments have been accepted by the affected LLG of:-

(i) Komo

17.1 Representation

- (i) The affected LLG will be represented by the President or his delegate and by the female nominated member of the LLG, for all purposes required by this Agreement.
- (ii) Where the LLG has not nominated a female member to the LLG or where the nominated female member of a LLG is unavailable, the LLG will be represented by the President or his delegate, for all purposes required by this Agreement.

17.2 Support for Project

- (i) The Komo LLG affirms that it will support the LNG Project and this Agreement and use its best endeavours to ensure support for the LNG Project by the Project Area Landowners and other peoples of the LLG area whether or not such people are direct beneficiaries.
- (ii) The Komo LLG agrees to cooperate with the State to apply development levies and infrastructure grants that may be available to implement approved projects.

17.3 Project Security

The affected LLG shall assist the Provincial and National Governments in terms of dialogue with the local communities and project monitoring of landowner activities in addressing threats from Project Area Landowners and non-project area landowners against LNG Project personnel, property and operations.

18. PROJECT AREA LANDOWNER UNDERTAKINGS

- (i) Access to land for project development shall be provided by landowners in accordance with the Section 122 of the Act and other relevant laws and shall not obstruct or interfere with lawful project development activities.
- (ii) The Project Area Landowners acknowledge the rights of the Developer and Operator as conferred under the Act and undertake to respect the tenure and rights conferred to the respective LNG Project Licences.
- (iii) The Project Area Landowners acknowledge the significance of the uninterrupted project operations and pledge to support the advancement of the LNG Project, assist the LNG Project Companies in controlling any obstructive elements inside and outside their communities or provinces who might attempt to hinder development or production and, where necessary, assist in the removal of any obstructions or blockades or assemblies formed to obstruct or blockade project equipment or facilities.

19. INDEPENDENT ISSUES COMMITTEE

- (i) The parties recognize the need to establish a committee to be called the "Independent Issues Committee (Committee)."
- (ii) The primary function of the Committee will be to gather, deliberate and report to the Department of Petroleum and Energy on matters raised at the LBSA Forum which do not form part of the LBSA negotiations and this Agreement.

clan identified within the licence area in accordance with the Land Groups Incorporation Act 1974.

(v) The Parties acknowledge that the program is time bound and will be launched immediately after the conclusion of all the LBSA forums for the wider Hides area and will be concluded by or before 1st February 2010.

20. COMMUNICATION

All communication between the parties hereto will be in writing addressed as shown in the Schedules hereto.

21. GOVERNING LAW AND JURISDICTION

The validity and interpretation of this Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the Independent State of Papua New Guinea, and the parties hereto expressly agree to submit disputes arising hereunder to the exclusive jurisdiction of the Courts of the State.

22. SEVERABILITY PROVISIONS

Any provision of this Agreement that is prohibited or unenforceable in any jurisdiction is ineffective as to that jurisdiction to the extent of the prohibition or unenforceability under the Oil and Gas Act 1998 as amended. That does not invalidate the provisions of this Agreement nor affect the validity or enforceability of any provision of Oil and Gas Act or any other applicable law as prescribed in this Agreement.

Legislative process for a declaration of a "free trade" status for Hela City in that event that Hela City is established.

24. AGREEMENTS AND ADDENDUMS

Where there are any references to any further negotiations and agreements any outcome shall form part of this Agreement and be annexed as an addendum.

25. ALTERNATIVE DISPUTE RESOLUTION

The parties agree to resolve disputes as follows:

- (i) Where dispute arises involving the Hides 4 APDL 7 Project Area Landowners, other project area landowners or non-project landowners, those parties shall resolve those disputes by discussion in accordance with relevant customs, alternative dispute resolution and if necessary by recourse to Village or Local Land Court or District Court as appropriate.
- (ii) Where there is a dispute in relation to the sharing of benefits then all monies shall be held in abeyance pending agreement by all clans/villages/tribes/groups within a three (3) month period or 15 January 2010 (which ever occurs first) failing which, the Minister shall intervene to make a determination in accordance with Section 169(8) of the Act.

26. INCONSISTENCY PROVISIONS

In the event of any inconsistency between this Agreement and the UBSA, the UBSA shall prevail.

27. REVIEW CLAUSE

- (i) The review of this Agreement shall occur every five years from the date of execution of this Agreement.
- (ii) The first review shall cover benefits that are implemented during the first five years only.
- (iii) Discovery of additional reserves will trigger a re-determination but will be considered at the time of review.
- (iv) For the purpose of this clause the review under clause 28 (i) relates only to the monitoring of the commitments and undertakings recorded in this Agreement.
- (v) For the purpose of this clause the review relates only to the benefits granted by the State and contained in this Agreement.

28 EXECUTION AND COUNTERPART

This Agreement may be executed in counterparts, each of which is deemed an original but all of which together constitute one and the same instrument. Any copy of this Agreement, which has been transmitted by facsimile, shall be deemed to be a counterpart original if such transmitted copy bears the signature of an authorised representative of the Party.

EXECUTION CLAUSE

Executed as an agreement by the duly authorized representatives of the Parties. Each authorized representative and/or its attorney executing this Agreement states that he or she has no notice of revocation or suspension of his or her power of attorney.

Signed for and on behalf of the) Independent State of Papua New) Guinea by Hon. William Duma, LLB, LLM M.P; Minister for Petroleum and)) Energy Pursuant to Section 51 of the Oil and Gas Act and all other powers enabling him with the authority, and in accordance with a decision of the National Executive Council in the presence of

Hon. William Duma

(Witness Signature)

(Witness Name)

Name:

Executed on this the day of December	
2009 for and on behalf of the Southern Highlands	
Provincial Government by the Governor of)
Southern Highlands Province the Honorable)
Anderson Agiru, MP) Hon. Anderson Aigiru
	\bigvee
Witnessed by the duly elected Honorable Members)
of the Southern Highlands Province)
)
) Hon. Peter O'neil, CMG, MP
) Member for Ialibu Pangia and Minister for Public
) Service
)
) Hon. James Marabe. MP
) Member for Tari Port & Minister for Education
) British
) The state of the
) Hon. Francis Potabe. MP
) Member for Komo Magarima
)
	Hon. Philemon; Embel LLB, MP
) Member for Nipa Kutuba & Minister Assisting the F
	Minister
) & Minister for Sports
)
	Hon. Pastor Isaac Joseph. MP
	Member for Mendi & Deputy Governor
	Marke Mark 2

Member for Koroba Lake Kopiago

)	
)	
)	Hon. Francis Awesa. MP
)	Member for Imbongu
)	
)	
			Hon. James Lagea. MP,
			Member for Kagua Erave
DATED this	day of December 2009.		

Its duly authorized Representative in the presence of)
Komo Local Level Government:	Juni Burn
Witness	Thomas Potabe
	President
DATED thisday of December 2009	

11	LNIANAE	CLAN	SIGNATURE
# 1	NAME LIBE PARINDALI	TAKA	JAM J
2	LEMSON MABIRIA	HONAGA	THE WAY
3	ERICK HAWAI		Alan 1
4	ANDY HAMAGA	AYA/WHRERE	A CONTRACTOR OF THE PARTY OF TH
5	TONY WABIRA	TAGUALI KAMIN	HAI! V
6 -	MATTHEW YAPE		
7	TALIYA TALE	TAGUALI TOBO	7
8	IGIBE KUI	(CV)	
9	NGINI KAPIAKO		Antel
10	EGARI KAPIAGO		The last
11	HANGU HOMAI		The will
12	ANDY KALOMA		MIN
13	ALBERT TUNDU		Holasto S
14	JOHN KALOMA		Julia /
15	ALEX ALIA		- Kh
16	IGIBE AKO	:	· Jaly
17	HOWARD TAMBO		HAPP
18	IBULE TEGE		
19	GAGUAI TEGE		·K
20	JOHN TINAME		Astone
21	TANDUPI PANGUPI	•	Tresto
22	WANDIAKO PAMI		V
23	MARTIN APE		
24	ENDORSE AJAGALI		
25	DANIEL WALIAPE		(II)
26	ELAPE PARAPU		N
27	HARE HARALU		MA .
28	MINAPE TAPE		17:
29	PALIA HAPE		1200
30	HENRY PARILA		gharding
31	HANGU HAGUABI		1000
32	HINGILI HAGUABI		. PA
33	TINAME TIABULE	MHP	lee
	SERI PEWAR	2 TO POPONO /	•

SEBI PEYAPE STILL

			*/ \
34	TENDELE LUYA		
35	CHRIS PAYAPE		
36	HEBE HIMUNI	(With the second	
37	ARIBA ANO		Chapt 1
38	ANDIPE PEPOKO		Mole
39	LAI KALUGO		the
40	TAWILA ANDAGO		the
41 -	WAPE TINDIPE		fielde
42	ANGAI WALAWI		do
43	TOLIPAGO MUGUBIGO		F
44	IBUGU PEPERAYA		the land
45	ALOIS PANGALI		(Hound)
46	PETER LIYAGO		Myget
47	TOM EGANDA		The state of the s
48	ANDIGI WAMITI		N.
49	PAUL HAROLI		227
50	ALEMBO PALIAWE		TASO
51	ELAPE URULU		•
	MARK TAYA		.VVt
52			THE STORY
	MARK TAYA		The second
52 53	MARK TAYA BILL PAIJAKO		- HAMARA
52 53 54	MARK TAYA BILL PAIJAKO ERICK HAWAI		The state of the s
52 53 54 55	MARK TAYA BILL PAIJAKO ERICK HAWAI ENOBI HARALU		And the
52 53 54 55 56	MARK TAYA BILL PAIJAKO ERICK HAWAI ENOBI HARALU PEPERAYA KUPALI		And the second of the second o
52 53 54 55 56 57	MARK TAYA BILL PAIJAKO ERICK HAWAI ENOBI HARALU PEPERAYA KUPALI LUYAPE URUBU		April 1
52 53 54 55 56 57 58	MARK TAYA BILL PAIJAKO ERICK HAWAI ENOBI HARALU PEPERAYA KUPALI LUYAPE URUBU LUBIA KANGALI		TEL
52 53 54 55 56 57 58 59	MARK TAYA BILL PAIJAKO ERICK HAWAI ENOBI HARALU PEPERAYA KUPALI LUYAPE URUBU LUBIA KANGALI LIBE PARINDALI		TEL
52 53 54 55 56 57 58 59 60	MARK TAYA BILL PAIJAKO ERICK HAWAI ENOBI HARALU PEPERAYA KUPALI LUYAPE URUBU LUBIA KANGALI LIBE PARINDALI TELAPE PARINDALI		TEL
52 53 54 55 56 57 58 59 60 61	MARK TAYA BILL PAIJAKO ERICK HAWAI ENOBI HARALU PEPERAYA KUPALI LUYAPE URUBU LUBIA KANGALI LIBE PARINDALI TELAPE PARINDALI EGALIA HIMU		TEL
52 53 54 55 56 57 58 59 60 61 62	MARK TAYA BILL PAIJAKO ERICK HAWAI ENOBI HARALU PEPERAYA KUPALI LUYAPE URUBU LUBIA KANGALI LIBE PARINDALI TELAPE PARINDALI EGALIA HIMU ANDIKI KIKO		TEL
52 53 54 55 56 57 58 59 60 61 62 63	MARK TAYA BILL PAIJAKO ERICK HAWAI ENOBI HARALU PEPERAYA KUPALI LUYAPE URUBU LUBIA KANGALI LIBE PARINDALI TELAPE PARINDALI EGALIA HIMU ANDIKI KIKO TELAPE MOYA L.1		TEL MANUELLE STELLE STE
52 53 54 55 56 57 58 59 60 61 62 63 64	MARK TAYA BILL PAIJAKO ERICK HAWAI ENOBI HARALU PEPERAYA KUPALI LUYAPE URUBU LUBIA KANGALI LIBE PARINDALI TELAPE PARINDALI EGALIA HIMU ANDIKI KIKO TELAPE MOYA LA		TEL STANDER
52 53 54 55 56 57 58 59 60 61 62 63 64 65	MARK TAYA BILL PAIJAKO ERICK HAWAI ENOBI HARALU PEPERAYA KUPALI LUYAPE URUBU LUBIA KANGALI LIBE PARINDALI TELAPE PARINDALI EGALIA HIMU ANDIKI KIKO TELAPE MOYA LA GEORGE IRUKA PAIA KUKU	NGUANE CHIEF	TEL STANDED ST
52 53 54 55 56 57 58 59 60 61 62 63 64 65 66	MARK TAYA BILL PAIJAKO ERICK HAWAI ENOBI HARALU PEPERAYA KUPALI LUYAPE URUBU LUBIA KANGALI LIBE PARINDALI TELAPE PARINDALI EGALIA HIMU ANDIKI KIKO TELAPE MOYA LA GEORGE IRUKA PAIA KUKU ERICK AYULE	NGUANE CHIEF PIMBI	TEL STELL ST

		•	
		•	111-6/
70	TOM MARAKO	KAYUMBA CHIEF	· House
71	ERICK HAWAI	HOYANI	10/1
72	CHRIS PAYAPE	PRESIDENT	
73	ANDY HAMAGA	HONGOLO	
.74	ERICK AYULE	TOGO	
75	MARTIN APE	KAMIA	
76	THOMAS POTAPE	TEGE	
77	THOMAS TENDELE	KILAPA	GENDELE
78-	TALIYA TALE	HARO	COL 3
79	MATTHEW YAPE	ABAGO	into
80	NOGOBE KOMBABE	KULU	A Design
81	HANGU HOMAI	URINA	
82	JOSEPH TUNDU	WAYAPA	.424
83	KANDIAWI HARIGALI	TAGALI	
84	IGIBE AKO	WAYA	
85	PORAWI LIMBIYA	TANYANDA	Q/
86	PARAPU MUGANI	PAPOLA	- John
87	HABE PALIA	TURALE	
88	JOHN TINAME	TAGAYA	
89	TANDUPI PANGUPI	KEWA	
90	PORAWI PAMI	KAMIA	
91	LIMBIAWI TAGO	PEREPULI	41.
92	TINAME TIAPULE	DEWAYA	
93	ARIBA TANDALI	PARIMA	
94	KAGUAI TEGE	OGALE	
95	MICHAEL GIKO	PAI	
96	TOLIPAGO MUGUBIGO	PALEPO	
97	MATIAPE AIYA	PI	
98	LAI KALUGO	TAGUA	- The
99	MAGABE TINDIPU	TABU	
100	PEPERAYA KUPALI	KANAGA	
101	PHILIP POKOPI	KEWALI	
102	ENOBI HARALU	YALE	
103	TALIPE ABAGO	ANGA	TBH
104	WILSON WALAPE	PARAGA	- W
105	UNDIAPE YANGO	KANAGA	○ (
106	EGA YALE	MANGO -	
107	ROBERT ANGOEA	TUNGAPE	

				_
	108	HONGAI HARE	TALIPE	HAMA:
	109	LUBIA KANGALI	LAYABE	
	110	PUGULA HEREBE	HIL APE	27 4040
	111	TELAPE PARINDALI	YOR OBE	7-07(1000)
ς.	112	EGALIA HIMU	TUM,A	,
	113	PIYAPE AIYA	TA GOBE	At a dela
	114	TELAPE MOYALI	GEMBE	The state of the s
	ັ 115 _*	ANDIKI WAMITA	WALO	KAPIA
	116	TUGURIA PALEN	TAYA	1. William
`	117	GAMBIAWI AIYA	LIAWE	1 - UV
	118	IBUGU HABIA	YANGALI	
	119	MATIALU KEPULIA	TAGORIA	2010
	120	MARK TAYA	GOMA	- Mic
ĺ	121	ALEMBO PALIAWE	YULA	-
ļ	<u> 122</u>	HENRY WAI	AMBİ	All
ļ	123	IRULE TALIYA	LIWAGO	The state of the s
- [13	TOM EGANDA	MUYA	1/247
-	135	ETER ANDANE		
}	136	WANDIAGO		Joer Val
+	137	Wr. LIOLA		Od.
+	138 139	TOMA	. •	AFI
\vdash	140	GEORGE	<i></i>	Doney'
卜	141	THOMPSON P.	f-	
厂	142	ELAPE TINDINI		Office
Γ	143	HANDAPE OGAMU		21ADET
	144	GIALE AYANA JOHN LIYA	KANIGU	+ +
	145	PALANA DABUGO	TUGUTALI	- June
	146	TEREMO KELERIA	TEGEAL	
_	147	HAMULE ANE	TUPA	Post
	148	MARABE HOMBO	NOLE	So un
			KELE	The corps
				11 100 11

	- T		The state of the s	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
			The state of the s	—· 1:
	140	KENE	UB!	
	150° N	ARIGI HEBOLO	TUNALI	
S	151	ANDAPE IGILA	AMULI	
	152 T	IAME GENDE	PAGAYA 🥠 🛝	An the
	153 ×	(UPIAWI UBI	HAYAMA	, ha
		PARU IPANDA	HULANA	
	31.5157+131/ T	MBIYU KOMBABE	WARILA /	
	156	ABALE HORA	HINI	
	157	ETAPE HARE	HIRIBA 🧸 💮 💮	
	158	EGA YALE	PUYA 🐧	
	159	MUNA HEREBE	WAGILA	and the second
	160	PAGALI KUNDU	RAPU	
		ŢIGIBA TAGAYAGA	IBURA	The state of the s
	162	JAMES IRIBU	MUBI.	Jam Charles
· 6	163	MBUGA ANDIPI	MARA	Hely
	164	LEMBO EGANDALI	NEPARA	The said of the sa
7 (3)	165	KAMIA WALJAPE	KELAY	(B)
	166	MINAGO TIGO	NE /	
	167	KAPIA LIBE	WABIAGO	TALES I
Ţ	168	LAI OLA	HALE	4.3
	169	IBITALI GOI	MIOINIDE 1	
	170	TANDALI PUNGA	MUGAGO TAMBUALI	MANA
	171_	DEI PALAGA	TABU	
	172 i s	NELSON TANGO	TIGO	
	17,3	EGA TAMUALI	AGANA	777
rii ya	- C- C- X-	TELENE HOMOKO / **	TAGA CHIEF	
	A175	HIWIPENO		
	176	LIBE PAYAWI		
	7 17 <i>177, 181</i>	HOLE WANGI		
		LIBE PARINDALI		
	1798	ENDORSE AJAGALI		
	180	ERICK HAROLI		
	181	TITUS HOLE		
	*∴182	WILLIE WAGIMA		y.
u 5.	183	PATRICK DABUGO	A Real State Control of the Control	
gir q garin	184	MARK ARAWI	PASTOR	
	185	NGINI KAPIAGO	✓ WÓMEN	
- 3	, , 186	SEBI PIŸAPE	CAMENT.	
100	· 187	TOM MARAGO	AVOIDEN	2.90.00
	188	HENRY HALUNI	WUMAN S	
	4. 4. 189	ANATHA TABAGUA	WOMEN	
	No. of No. 12	YABALIA HIMUNI	WOMEN	
4	191	LINA ABAGO / ARALI DEWAYA	WOMEN KAYUMBA	
T	192	ΑΡΔΙΙΝΈWΑΥΑ		

2.200

193	JAPENA ERIC	
194	CHRISTINA YANGO	
195	AYAGO MBALU	
196	PIUS KUKU	

WITNESSED BY MR. CHRIS HAIVEYA - HIDES 4 PDL 7 FORUM FACILITATOR

MR. CHRIS HAIVETA

WITNESSED BY MR. FRANK TELYA KUNIA – HIDES 4 PDL 7 FORUM TEAM LEADER

MR. FRANK TELYA KUNIA

LIST OF APDL 7 LANDOWNER AND LEADERS REPRESENTATIVES

NO	MAJOR CLAN	SUB-CLAN	NAME
1	AJA	JOROBE	ANDIKI WAMITI
2		TAGOBE	KAMBIAWI PAMI
3		TUMA	PAUL HAROLI
4		WARERE	JOHN TINAME
5		WARERE ALUWABE	JAMES HANGUBE
6		WARERE KENDOPA	ANDY HAMAKA
7		IBIRA	MANGO HONALE
8	AMBURU	KILI	THOMAS LIBE URILA
9		HAGUAI	ANDY HILIWAGO
10	TAKA	PARAGO	LUBIA GANGALI
11		MANGOA	TALIBE PARINDALI
12		KANAGA	MALIRA MALAI
13	HAKU	KAMIA HEKE	IBANA TEKE
14		KAMIA PALEPO	ANGOBE TIMBIYU
15		KAMIA MIAYALE	LIBE NOMA
16		ABAGO WAKURIA	JOHN KALOMA
17		ABAGO HAMAKA	JOHN TANDALI
18		KULU HALIA	TABE HAYAGA
19		KULU UNDILIA	AMOS OLAPE
20		KULU TABAYAGO	HOWARD TAMBO
21		PERABULI	MICHAEL GIKO
22	HARIA	HARIA	EGA NGOLARA
23		WARIPA	WAI TAPUGA
24		NUNUGU	KAMIAKO KIAWIKO
25	HINI •	DEKENI	PAGALI KUNDU
26		MOKORO	JIM MARA
27		ALAGA '	HALUYA TAMBIAGU
28		WARAYA	NELSON WAPIRA
29	HIRAPIA	IRAWI	EKALIA HOMANE
30		PIANO	
31		TANDALI	POGARA TAGIBE
32		DABUMALI	PAPOLA IRAWI
33	HONAKA	PARIMA	REX WABE
34		PARIMA LUBIA	EGABE MARAKO
35		PARIMA LUNA	WALAPE TINDIPE
36		PARIMA KELO	MALIAPE ANGAI
37		PARIMA KUYALE	KINA TOGOLA
38		PARIMA JAPE	ELAPE TINDIPE

39		PARIMA ALIWA	TILIPE ALIWA
40 40		TEWAYA ANGO	KUYALE IPANDA
41		TEWAYA MOPE	EKA KINA
42		TEWAYA AYUMANEKO	PANI AGOLI
43		TEWAYA WAIKA	DENNIS OLA
44	<u> </u>	TEWAYA TUNAKO	LEO LINA
45		TEWAYA AYU	OLAPE ARAKO
46		TEWAYA HAYAMAKO	IPAKO TENE
47		TEWAYA KAPILI	KULAI PONGORALI
48		OGALE IRAWI	TABE AMAYA
49		OGALE AKIWA	LAI HARALU
50		OGALE KIMABE	JOSHUA WARABE
51		OGALE MALI	PULAGO TAMI
52		OGALE MALABA	PETER TALIBE
53		OGALE ANDAYA	LAMBI PURILI
54		OGALE YANDAIBA	LUKE ALO
55		ANDORIA PULUMANI	WAPE AGO
56		ANDORIA LALU	WILLY WANDIAI
57		ANDORIA WAPUGO	HENRY TATAPE
58		ANDORIA WAI	HAPIA OPE
	HORA	WAGILA HIMI	EKARI YOBO
59 60	HONA	WAGILA LINAPE	AGIBE AYU
61		WAGILA TAKOPA	STEVEN ETABE
62		WAGILA HAMAGA	TIKI OLONOGO
63		PAPU WAKUPA	PETER PANDAWE
64	-	PAPU PILAPE	LEMBO EGANDALI
65		PAPU GIYIA	WILFRED PAYA
66		PAPU GULA	ARIBA PAILBE
67		PAPU PETALI	WALAPE TOBETIMBU
68	JAGORA	114 0 1211111	IKIWAKI IKIBE
69	120017	SOGOAIPA	GEORGE IRUKA
70	 	SAI	ANGIBE KAUBE
71		PAPE	JUSTINA ARAWI
72		POROLI	МІРЕ КАРІА
73		JAPUKA	THOMPSON PIPE
	KAYUMBA	KANAKA	WILSON AYULE
74	KATUIVIDA	JALE	HABE PARANA
75		KEWALI	TAGUBE ALIAME
76		ANGA	TIBA ARIBA
77	<u> </u>	HAGAJABE	PIYABE JAHO
78	VELA	HAGAADE	CHRIS PAYAPE
79	KELA	PIMBI	HELABE PAYABE
80	<u> </u>	IBIALI	TOTO TALIYA
81	1	IBIALI	12.0

82		TAWI	JAMES KANE
83		TAKAYA	TONDALI YALUPA
84		ANGAI	HENRY HAGUAI
85		TINDIPALE	TINAME TIABULI
86		KEWA	HEBE PEPOGO
87	кома	TARE	AGIBE KOI
88		KENDEA	TOM EGANDA
89		IBU	JANNET TINAME
90	KUARA	PARI	WAPE PIAGOLA
91		EKARI	AYULE TANDU
92		WANDIPE	IGIBE ALEBO
93	MEDEA	JALU	KEN HAGUABI
94	Wiebert	GUNDAKA	HEPE PUPU
95	MINA	PALEPO HAGU	TAYABE KUPALI
96		PALEPO KARULI	PETER TAMITALI
97		PALEPO TAGUA	
98		PALEPO PAWA	LUYLE URUBU
99		PAII HAGU	NGIBE TOGO
100		PAII KELA	GOAI HALONGO
101		PAII PARIMA	PAYABU WITA
102		PAII	PEPERAYA KUPALI
103	MORA	AMATATIA	HAME TAKIYA
104		SAPALIMATIA	PETER IPAPE
105		IKIPI	ULA KUMAYA
106		TELETO	AMOS DIWI
107	мото	мото	LIBE ULO
108		KAIBE	KEVIN DOFONA
109		EDOLOI	PHILLIP TUALE
110		SEDADO	YAUDO BABE
111		SALODO	TOMAI KEVIN
112		SAMEO	ALAGO SIMALE
113	MUGAGO	WAYA	WANDIAGO PAMI
114		HONGOLO	TANDUPI PANGUPI
115	MUIA	MUNA	ANDI MUIA
116		EKALI	PATRICK MOLOMA
117	PAKO	PAKO	AKOPE TILIPE
118	PARI	HIYABE	TILABE MOYALI
119		LAYABE	BIYABE AYA
120		PULALE	JACK SILA
121		AYALO	TIGI TUNDAGO
122	PARAYA	TABU	TALIBE ABAGO
123		TAGUA	ENOPI HARALU
124		PII	ROCKY WAYALI

125	PATE	NOLE	HAME KENDE
126		TUPA	GUANE PATE
127		ALUWAPIA	KIBU AYUWALE
128		JUNARIGO	AIKO HOMOKO
129		GOKOMA	TALIBE POKALI
130		MABU JULI	HALUNI IPALA
131	PELA	TUNGABE	
132		TUNGABE WANDIPE	PUGULA HEREBE
133		TUNGABE PAYARIKO	LESSY ELAWIKO
134		TUNGABE YOPEKO	YAGAME YANGALI
135		TUNGABE KAIBA	TELABE PARINDALI
136		TUNGABE NALIKO	TAPE HAWI
137		TUNGABE KOYA	TIKILI KELU
138		TALIBE KIPA	AWI HENELE
139		TALIBE KOMAPA	EKARI WARIAME
140		TALIBE TAMBI	
141	DAGIMA	DAGIMA	JUMURI PALIA
142	PEPE	ТОМВЕ	PATRICK TAGUGO
143		TABULI	ANDERSON TAPA
144		TABAMU	TANDAGO LEMBO
145		TIBIKI	LAMBIAGO HARE
146		HIRILA	HENGEPE HALUYA
147		OLABE	LUYAPE ANDAYA
148		MAIA	MICHAEL KANE
149		TINA	PARANDA PURULI
150		TABUA	NANA KAWI
151		TUKUTEALI	MARAPE HOMBO
152		TEKIALI	HAGU ARENE
153		PILI	MARTIN MARABE
154		HIRALI	KAMBALI MOLOMA
155		WAYABE	BENSON AIPE
156		TIMALIA	JACK HARE
157		HAYAMA TANIGO	JACK HARE
158		HAYAMA HIMUGU	ANGOLO KAPIARU
159		HAYAMA IRAWALE	
160		HAYAMA AMULI	OLABE HAMIA
		HAYAMA POTARA	MINAGO EGA
161 162		HAYAMA TUNALI	ARAWI BUGA
163		HAYAMA KIPU	
		HAYAMA POMIA	HAWI ALIANE
164_		KEBAYA	AMENAYA IILARA
165		UBI PANGU	ROBERT KUPIAWI
<u> 166</u>		UBI TIPAYA	VICTOR LIMBIAWI

211	1	TAKALI	
Ž12		URIBA	ARAWI MOJARI
213		KINUME	TONY WARUNI
214		TOGAI	KILERA WAYAPE
215		KANGULIA	PARAWI LIMBIJA
216		PALIRA	GIJA TRAPIA
217			
218	AJA	JOROBE	TIGI TAGAYAGO
219		TAGOBE	ANDI KUYAI
220		TUMA	TOMABE PALIA
221		WARERE	ELAYA PULUMA
222		WARERE ALUWABE	JAMES HAPE
223		WARERE KENDOPA	LIYAGO ANDANE
224		IBIRA	CATHY HONALE
225	AMBURU	KILI	ATOLL TONGOLE
226		HAGUAI	TOBIAS ULIRA
227	TAKA	PARAGO	HARE HARALU
228	17.00	MANGOA	PAYA PARINDALI
229		KANAGA	JOHN LIWA
230	HAKU	KAMIA HEKE	STEVEN IPULE
231	Tirate	KAMIA PALEPO	GONDO ANGOBE
232		KAMIA MIAYALE	SEBBIE TIMBIYU
233		ABAGO WAKURIA	HIMUBE MANDAKO
234		ABAGO HAMAKA	
235		KULU HALIA	
236		KULU UNDILIA	
237		KULU TABAYAGO	
238		PERABULI	FRED DELAGO
239	HARIA	HARIA	PIYAPE LEMBO
240		WARIPA	PALANA TAPUGA
241		NUNUGU	TONY ILU
242	HINI	DEKENI	HALE TAMBIABU
243		мокого	LAPE TIGIBA
244		ALAGA	PURANI TAPE
245		WARAYA	KUPIAWI JUMU
245	HIRAPIA	IRAWI	ARAWI MAGA
247	THINESTER	PIANO	MABE TANGI
247		TANDALI	LEMAGO KARAYA
		DABUMALI	ISSAC LEMAGO
249	HONAKA	PARIMA	YAKA NAYOLI
250	HONAKA	PARIMA LUBIA	NGIBE HAWI
251		PARIMA LUNA	DAVID AIYA
252		PARIMA KELO	KEPALU LAMBIAWI
253		FAMINA RELO	1

426	WAREA	HAPE PAIJAPE
427	WAYAPA	ELAVE PARAPU
428	TAKALI	HANDARA HAMUA
429	URIBA	PILAPE HIPANDA
430	KINUME	WILLSON PAWA
431	TOGAL	ENOPI WAYAPE
432	KANGULIA	TABE MINAPE
433	PALIRA	

HIDES 4 APDL 7 LBBSA ADDITIONAL INVITEE LIST

434	LEYA		WANJIJA JUPI
435	LEYA		LARSON LEVI
436	TOMBE	HOWA	EGA TAMUALI
437		ANI	OLABE KALOMA
438	PEPE	TABUALI	ERIC HAROLI
439	MUGAGO	LUYA	HAME TOPI
440		JALIPI	HINAI HONDOMO
441		PAPOLE	PORAWI PAMI
442		TURARE	DANIEL EKAWI
443		TAYANDA	JOHNNY NAPAKAYA
444		WAYA	AYAKO MAPIRA
445		WOMEN REP.	JALE BIYALI
446	HAGU	APAGO	ALEX ALIA
447		UNDIRA KULU	AMOS OLABE
448		TAYA KULU	LIBE OGOBI
449		POLI KULU	LABE TALIBE
450		YANGI KULU	HENNY UNDIABE
451		GIBARO KULU	PETER PALIBE
452		TABEYAGO KULU	HOWARD TAMBO
453		HALIA KULU	TABE HAYAGA
454	KAMIA	TANABE	LAMBIAWI WABIRA
455		ALU	WANDIBE MATTHEW
456		HALE TULU	OLABE URULU
457		TIBARA	RUTH ABA
458		BALEBO	BIBE HAYABIYA
459		EMBERA	HAMURE WABIRA
460		LAMANO	HANDABE PALIBE
461		NOGO ABA	ANGAI NGOLO
462		URUKU	WAYAMA HABIA
463		WAKAYA	LUYALE TAMIABE
464	TOGO	HARE	IGIBE GUI
465		HALUMA	DABE GUI

466		PELI	JAPE ANDAGO
467		SANDU	WAGIMA PIBE
468		MILEWA	KOLOMA WABIAGO
469	HIMIALI	KALU KOTAMA	WAYABE MOLE
470		KAMIALE KOTAMA	WAYALI HALIABE
471		BEBERAYA KOTAMA	MINAI HAMULE
472		ABARUA KOTAMA	ROSE BEN
473		EMIALI HIMUPE	ERI AWE
474	HARO	LANDA	ALBERT TUNDU
475		HAROBA	ANDALU KEREWA
476		PIPILA	ANITA JOSEPH
477	TANGUALI	TEKE	TERRY TANDAKO
478		GU	KARIBE KUNI
479		WARAKU	MATIABE BAYA
480		KIABU	WANDIAGO NOGOBE
481		WALU	KANDIAWI MARABE
482		PERELA	HABIA HAYABA
483		KAWA	JANGABA IGIBE
484	KELA		CHRIS PAYABE
485		IBALE PIMBI	PALIBE PAYABE
486		APIALI PIMBI	TOO TALIYA
487		TAWI PIMBI	JAMES KANE
488		ANGE TAKAYA	TONDOLI YALUBA
489		TINDIPALE TAKAYA	TINAME TEBULE
490		TIMBALI KEWA	HEBE PEPOGO
491		CHIEF	PAYABE PAPE
492	KAYUMBA		ROBERT ANGOYA
493		KANAKA	WILSON AYULE
494		JALE	RECY HANDAPE
495		KEWALI	PIUS KUKU
496		ANGA	IKIWAKI HETABE
497		KEPAJA	BENNY LAMBIAWI
498		HANGUALI	KARI PALIABE
499		TILA	WILLY AYULE
500		LUPU	HAPKAS HAWI
501	KALIBA	MAI BULU	EDDY KALOMA
502		HUNDIBULU	DABE TOGOWABE
503		HIMIALI	BEN IKIRIA
504		PIRU	HIWI AMOS
505		AYAKA	ABALA HARABE
506		AWI	HANDAPE AIKA
507		BALEBO	PONABA TAMIA
508		MUGAGO	DANIEL EKARIA

509	TAGIMA	_	JUMULI POLIA
510	PAGO	HAEYA	HAME HAYA
511		PAEYA	PETER PALIBE
512		МОКОРА	HONGAI
513	JUGU	KOYUPA	HANGU KOPI
514		WARAME	GARRY HAGEN
515	PARAYA	OLABE	WATEN AKO
516	NGOLE	TAKILI TAMBUKA	MIYA YANAPE
517		TAKIMA TAMBUKA	MATIABE LEMAKO
518		TAKIAPU TAMBUKA	HARI TATAPE
519	MINIPA	TALIPE	JANARI
520	TAMBARUMA	MBERA HULANA	KEN WABILI
521		BUGULU HULANA	TIABE PALAGO
522		WANI HULANA	TOM MARAGO
523	HORA	HMABUGO IBURA	WILLIAM WANDIBE
524		HOYALI IBURA	HALUMA MUBI
525		ANDALI IBURA	TAGOBE BAGADA
526		MOBE PUYA	JAMES IRIBU
527		NGAWARIA PUYA	TELENE HOMOKO
528		WATAPO PUYA	TALE HOMOKO
529		MARA	HERI KULU
530		NEPARA	KAPIA HABO
531		МОРІ	VICTOR AMALU
532	WABIAGO	TOMBE PUTI	LAI HUBIGO
533		PHEBE PUTI	TANDIBI TOMBAGI
534	PEPE	URUPU TABUALI	JACK TELAPE
<u>5</u> 35		EKAPAGA TABUALI	ANDERSON TAPA
536	MINA	PAI	TOGO KEKO
537	JAROKA		GEORGE IRUKA
538		SOGOAIPA	KAYAPE TINDINI
539		SAI	КИМИ НАТАУА
540		PAPE	HAGOYA IRAPI
541		POROLI	MIPE KAPIA
542	AMULI	ALIANA	DABE KAYABE
543	TOBANI		TAWILA KAU
544	АМОТО	YUFEA	HOLA PALO
545		AMODO	EDDY WARA
546		NABA	SIFALO PIDIGA
547	PALEPO	HIRIWAKO	TAPE TOGOWAPE
548		KENAMO	KIRALI MONDO
549	YALUMA	BIBU	TILIS PANI
550	PERAPULI	JAKUANE	ARAWI KILU
551		TOGOBIRA	MICHAEL GIKO

593	MUNA		PAPALI HOMAI
594	PAKAYA	WIRA	ABULI HOMANE
595		NAWIRA	ALIAWA KERALI
596	MINA	PALEPO	HALUNI HIMINI
597	PELA	WANDIBE	HORAWI PINIGO
598	TAKOBALI	KYARA GOBA	IBULE TENDIBE
599	TOGO	HARE	PILAPE TALIYA
600		HALUMA	JAPE ANDAGO
601		PELI	WAKIMA PAKANA
602		TANDU	MAKAPE TALIYA
603		MILAWA	ABULI ARALI
604	TAMBURUMA	KIPU	PIPE TAKOBE
605	TAPAMU		ALEX ELAWI
606	DALABA HUMBI	LALE	GEORGE EDWIN
607		TOGOBE	WANDIAGO HOWARD
608		YOBOGO	IKI HOWARD
609	TAGOPALI	HAI HINAWAI	ANNA WAYALI
610	AKANA LEO		HABIALU WANGIPU
611	TUNA		ROBERT HAWI
612	NALIPA		HENNY UNDIABE
613	PAI TUNALI		KALUWAI HETABE
614	TAGABUA		ANGOBE PEPOKO
615	TOLA LUYALE		JAPENA ERIC
616	TUNALI		PARU IBANDA
617	TAKUALI	TANABE	LAMBIAWI WAPIRA
618		ALU	WANDIPE MATHEW
619		ALU	DAVID TULI
620		HALE TULU	OLABE URULU
621		EMBERA	HANDAPE APULAPE
622		TIPARA	JAMES TANGERIA
623		PALEPO	MAI MATILU
624		LAMONO	TANDALU PALIPE
625	KILABA	AWI	ERIC HANDAPE
626		PIRU	HIWI EMOS
627		MUKAKO	DENIAL EKALIA
628		AYAKA	ABALA HARAPE
629		BALEBO	PONOBA MUGUBIKO
630		HUNDI BULU	TANDAKO
631		MAI BULU	EDI KALOMA
632	PUGUME	TAGAPUA	AGOPE PEPOGO
633		TAGABUA	ANGORE PEPOGO
634	ANIMA		HEBE PEPOGO
635	WARABIA	WAYABA	DANIEL WARIABE

552		NGAWE	YAGIAPU PURANI
553		ALIWA	TONY NOMA
554	TAGOBALI	ENOBA	ANDIKI TAMO
555	KELA	TIBA	AMOS GOEMGE
556		LETAYA	FRANCIS GENDE
557		KELO	AGIBE PAYABE
558	KULU	TAYA	LIBE OKOBI
559		TAPAYAGO	HAWARD TAMBO
560		EKALIAGO	ANDALU PAYAPE
561		JANGI	HENNY UNDIAPE
562		IPIRA	ILU MBALU
563		POLI	ANGOL LAI
564		HANDALE	EMOSE OLABE
565		KIPARO	IPUGO PEPERA
566		HALIA	TAPE HAYAKA
567	IRAKOA	ALEMBO	JOHN WAKIRA
568	MUGAKO	GULA	EDDY URIBU
569	MORA	SELADO	OLAPU MARAGO
570	НАКИ АРАКО	WAKUPIA	TOM MINABE
571		TOKOPIRA	NELSON LIYA
572		WARALE	KAMBALI TAPELA
573		ТОКОРА	BABALI MINABE
574	MUGAKO HONGOLO	LUYA	THOMAS TENDLE
575	HONGOLO	TAYANDA	THOMAS TENDLE TANDUP! PANGUP!
576		YALIBILI	JAMES IBAYA
577		PAPOLE	WANDIAKO PAMI
578		TURALE	DANIEL EGAWI
579		WAYA	KEN KALEGO
580	TAPU	WALEWA	JOHN APAI
581	DAMEA	PALIMA	TINDIPU LEMAGO
582	IMINI NE	ULARA	ANDIBI OLONOGO
583		PARABAGUA	PARABU YAMANDA
584		KILAMBU	JUSTIN HAGOYA
585	WARILA		TAI ANDIPU
	WARAPIA	HALIA	TAYABE MATIALY
586	WAYAPA	HEKABA	DANIAL WALIABE
587	_	HLIA	ELABE PARABEI
588		HAMANO	PAYABE PARAPU
589		IRABE	JACK WAPE
590		PORAKA	MATHIAS HOWARD
591	TAGIMA	LIGALI	JACK TANDAGO
592	HAMBUALI		PIYAPE ABULI



636	<u> </u>	URINA	ANDEDA TABAGUA
637		TAGALI	PEYABE PARABU
638		HOYANI	MARTIN ABE
639		ALIA	TAYABE MATIABE
640		WABE	LAMBI PARELI
641		PORAGA	WABE PAWA
642		HEGABA	WANDIAGO HOWARD
643		KEKO	PHILIP WAI
644		WAREA	IBANDA NDELAGO
645		HALIAKO	HALUNI TIDIBAYA
646		PALIRA	NGIGA IRABIA
647		TOGAI	KILARA WAYABE
648		GANGURIA	PORAWI LEMBIYA
649		JAGIRA	STEVEN EDAGO
650		KINUME	TONY WARUNI
651		IRIBA	PILABE IBANDA
652		KODANGE	MALIABE LENGOBI
653		PAYABU	HABE PAYABE
654		NALIBA	AYABE MORE
655		HALIAKO	JACK HIMUBE
656	HAKU	KAMIA HEKE	KAGUAI TEKE
657		KAMIA PELABO	TIABI TIMBIYU
658		KAMIA MIAYALE	LIBE NOMA
659		KAMIA WALUWALI	KEPEYA IGNINATUS
660		KAMIA WABILI	ANDY ANGOBE
661		KAMIA TUMBU	JOHN WAI
662		KAMIA KANGAME	MONE ARAWI
663		KAMIA HANDAWI	EMSSON MALIAPA
664		ABAGO WAKURIA	JOHN KALOMA
665		ABAGO WARALA	IPANDA PANGALI
666		ABAGO TOKOPA	HIMUPE MANDAKO
667		ABAGO HAMAKA	HERRY MERIA
668		ABAGO TAWAPE	WARUNI TOLAI
669	IKI PONDO	PONDO	BETTY MAGA
670		TIGALE	TIGI PONDO
671		TAKAYU	TED ANDIKI
	TUGUBA		
672	TAGORIA	PURI	CYNTHIA MAGA
673		PAIPO	DAGU DABE
674		TULUPAYA	IRULE TALIYA
675		TIMUENDE	SOTI BILL
676	KELA	TUGURIA	AGOBE HIBITALI
677	<u></u>	MAGAYA	ANDREW KARAYA

678		Alango	FRANCIS LAMBIAWI
679		ELOPA	HAPE GABIAGO
680		TELAPE	EGABE TUNDU
681		IPALE	HETAPE PAYAPE
682		APIAL	TOTO TALIYA
683		TAWI	JAMES KANE
684		ANGE	TONDOLI TALUPA
685		ANGAI	GINI LUYA
686		TINDIPALE	TINAME TEPULE
687		KEWA	ARIPA ANO
688		TIMBALI	HEPE PEPUGO
689	TUNA	MATANE	NGINI YAKANE
690	HIRALI	TOYAE	TOMAI MOLOMA
691		PAGAYA	TELAPE HUPIGO
692		нимві	LUPALU ARAWI
693		MOLOMA	THOMAS DOME
694		PELEGO	KIBILI HIMUPE
695		HARA	PIBE HAYABUYA
696	TALABA HUMBI	LALE	GEORGE EDWIN
697		TAGOBE	IRAPI HAKOYA
698		JOBEGO	WANDIAKO HOWARD
699	TAGUALI	TEKE	EKARI KAPIAKO
700		GU	GARIBE KUNI
701		KEBU	WANDIAKO NOGOBE
702		WARA KULI	MATIABE BAYA
703		WALU	KANDIAWI MATABE
704		GAWE	YANGABA BOLE
705		GOLARA	UNDIABE KALU
706	HARO	LANDA	ALBERT TUNDU
707		PIPILA	ALIABE JOSEPH
708		HAROPA	ANITA JOSEPH
709		JARI	PAPE AMENAYA
710	TOBANI	BURULI	ROIMON LIBE
711		PUPU	MAGABE KAMALIA
712	WARILA	TAMEYA	MUNA HEREPE
713		IPULE	ANDREW TAPI
714	TOBE	TANO	BEN BERI
715		EMBORA	BORA BAKA
716		МВОТАКО	BARABU JAMANDA
717	ТОМВЕ	LAMALUGU	EKA TAMALI
718		ANI IKINI	LIWAKO BIBE
719		HOWA	AGNES MALIAME
720	HIMIALI	KALU	BEN PORA

721		KAMIALE	WAYALI HALAPE
722		BEBERAYA	IGARI HENRY
723		APARUA	MRS ROSE POLA
724	TOPE	BAIPU	JOSEPH ABULI
725	TAMBUKALI	NGIBE	URUBU BOGAYA
726		WANGA	BAMA EKA
727		AMIABE	AGOMA DAMIAGU
728		ARIAGO	BAYA HOWA
729		IRA HANGU	AYA LIWA
730	TAGOPALI	HAI HINAWAI	ANNA WAYALI
731	HAITENE	KAKE	IBAGO KUALI
732		LAGILAGO	ARI AWE
733	HINI	YUMU	EGANDA WAJANDA
734		LEPE	MAX PANI
735		LALE	PAUL LIYAKO
736		UNDIA	LAMBI ALEBAGO
737	TAMEYA		KILARA HAWI
738	WANENI		JAPILI TUMALI
739	KAYUMBA	KAYUMBA	ROBERT ANGOYA
740		KANAKA	WILSON AYULE
741		JALE	RECY HANDAPE
742		KEWALI	PIUS KUKU
743	<u>, </u>	ANGA	IKIWAKI HETABE
744		KEPAJA	BENNY LIMBIAWI
745		HUNGUALI	KARI PALIABE
746		TILA	WILLIE AYULE
747		LUPU	HAPCAS AWI
748	WABIAGO	WAIYU	DEI PALAGA
749		TOMBLE YALE	NGIBE HAWI
750		PAME KURUPU	PETER HEPALE
751	YALUMA	WARI	TOM MARAGO
752	HALE	TIRIKI	CHARLES TANGI
753	PEPOGO (PEPE)	BELE	MATTHEW IRUKA
754		KOE	MOSES BALU
755		MILIPA	ALBERT PIAWIYA
756		LOPEYAME	HAPIALU HEWARA
757		PURUKUME	PHILIP GAMAN
758		YAMA	IPANDA HIPULU
759		KUMBAME	DABOL TUGUBA
760		ALOME	SIKI KIMI
761		WAYA	YAKAPI ALEMBO
762		YALIA	AMANE WAI
763		PULI	MARAKO YAKAPI

764		НЕКОМЕ	HAME AKUNI
765		KUMANI	АКОРЕ ТІМВАРИ
766		KARUA	PAUL KOKI
767		YAPAKO	TAWAPI KUMIRIA
768		MORA	PAYA IRUKA
769		TAPAKUALI	ALOISIS AWUAKO
770		TUGU	PHILIH IRUKA
771		YAMBA	TANDOLE HAYAKO
772		AYAKE	JAMES WALIPA
773		ULIA	MOSES AKORE
774		МАКОРА	HENSON MALINGI
775		HALU	SAMSON HETAPE
776		KAYAPU	IRUKA HUNIA
777		WABETA	НОРАКА УАКАРОІ
778		KAYA	PARAKUA PALIPE
779		YAPOKAPALIPE	TIMBALU LAI
780	MINA (PALEPO)	HAGU	TAYABE KUBALI
781		KARULI	PETER TAMITALI
782		TAGUA 1	HARIANI HIMUNI
783		TAGUA 2	TUMBI TIGIBI
784		PARIBU	LUYABU URUBE
785	MINA (PAI)	HAGU	NGIBE TOGO
786		KELA	GOAI HALONGO
787		PARIMA	PAYAPU WITA
788		PARAYA OLAPE	WATAM AKO
789		HONAGA WAROLO	ELAWI ERENE
790		HAGU KULU UNDIA	ANDALU PAYAPE
791		PAKATA KINAI	EDWARD LIYAGO
792		PATE NOLE	HANDAPE IGILA
793		HORA PUJA	TELENE HOMOKO
794		HONAGA DEWAYA	IPUKU TEWAYA
795	КОМА	KENDEJE	STEVEN J HUMBIGO
796		HONAGA WAROLO	ELAWI ERENE
797		HAGU KULU UNDIA	ANDALU PAYAPE
798		PAKATA KINAI	EDWARD LIYAGO
799		PATE NOLE	HANDAPE IGILA
800		HORA PUJA	TELENE HOMOKO
801		HONAGA DEWAYA	IPUKU TEWAYA
802	·	MINA	TITUS HOLE
803		MBUTA	JACKSON LAI
804	TUGUBA DAGA	DAGA	HONGAI HARE
805		TAMBURUMA	JAMES MAI
806		PARAJA	MAW ANGO

807	ТОМВЕ	HOWA	ARAWI TAMUALI
808	TOWING	ANI	
809	PEPE	TABUALI	ARALU EGA
810	MUGAGO		JACK TELAPE
811	MOGAGO	LUYA	APILI PUKULA
		JALIPI	JAMES HIPIYA
812		PAPOLE	TALIAGO PAMI
813		TURARE	LIMBAWI TAGO
814		TAYANDA	KEN KELEGO
815		WAYA	HAMINI THOMAS
816	HAGU	APAGO	IPANDA PAGALI
817		UNDIRA KULU	IBABE GUMU
818		TAYA KULU	ANDAYA WALIABE
819		POLI KULU	ONGOLO LAI
820		YANGI KULU	AYABE MORE
821		GIBARO KULU	EGAMBE LEMBO
822		TABEYAGO KULU	DAVID TAMBO
823		HALIA KULU	GULAI PONGORALI
824	KAMIA	TANABE	MINULE TOMABE
			WABE MATHEW/ROBERT
825		ALU	EKA
826		HALE TULU	IBANDA HABIA
827		TIBARA	JAMES DANGERIA
828		BALEBO	MAI MATIALU
829		EMBERA	HIABE TALIYA/ŁAI ABAI
830		LAMANO	MANGOBE MINULE
831		NOGO ABA	LAIYA HOMAI/POBE EKA
832		URUKU	BUNI DAVID
833		WAKAYA	TANDALU PALIBE/TABAR! KAIABE
834	TOGO	HARE	JAMES IPIYA
835		HALUMA	PILABE TALIYA
836		PELI	JOHN IPIYA
837		SANDU	WILLY GAGUA
838		MILEWA	ABULI ARAKALI
839	HIMIALI	KALU KOTAMA	BEN PORA
840	111111111111111111111111111111111111111	KAMIALE KOTAMA	HEBARI MINAI
841		BEBERAYA KOTAMA	MONDORO HAMULE
842		ABARUA KOTAMA	HENI AYABE
843		EMIALI HIMUPE	ARI AWE
844	HARO	LANDA	r wat ravv to
845	IIANO	HAROBA	ALIABE TUNDU
****			···
846	TANGUALI	PIPILA	HONGAI PETER
847	TANGUALI	TEKE	UNDIABE KALU

848		GU	EKARI KABIAGO
849		WARAKU	WANDIBE HAWI
850		KIABU	IRAGO LEO
851		WALU	JAKAPO HAWI
852		PERELA	AGIBE TARA
853		KAWA	DICK LUYABE
854	KELA		THOMAS EKALIA
855		IBALE PIMBI	JOHN KAUPI
856		APIALI PIMBI	MANDAGI KAYAGI
857		TAWI PIMBI	RONNEY PAYA
858		ANGE TAKAYA	ANGAI KULALI
859		TINDIPALE TAKAYA	TENDELE LUYA
860		TIMBALI KEWA	WIAP PONGO
861		CHIEF	
862	KAYUMBA		ERIC AYULE
863		KANAKA	ANTHONY HIGUNI
864		JALE	ROSE EKA
865		KEWALI	PALOBE YANGO
866		ANGA	KARIPE TAPA
867		KEPAJA	ANDIPE PEPOGO
868		HANGUALI	TIPAPE ARIPA
869		TILA	TAKUBE GAI
870		LUPU	ALIPU HOMOKO
871	KALIBA	MAI BULU	TABE AMAYA
			IBUGU TEWAYA/SAGUS
872		HUNDIBULU	OLABE
873		HIMIALI	TANDAGO HARABE
874		PIRU	MADIALU PORAME
875		AYAKA	OLA HARAPE
876		AWI	YAKILI HARAYA
877		BALEBO	HANGU HOMAI
878		MUGAGO	SOTI LAI
879	TAGIMA		DALIAGO ABAGO
880	PAGO	HAEYA	TAI MUKULI
881		PAEYA	OBE YANGO
882		МОКОРА	JAKUALI LIYA
883	JUGU	KOYUPA	PATRICK HUPIKO
884		WARAME	IRAKO TEKI
885	PARAYA	OLABE	ALUBI AKILO
886	NGOLE	TAKILI TAMBUKA	HAYA
887		TAKIMA TAMBUKA	ALIPE
888		TAKIAPU TAMBUKA	THOMAS EKALIA
889	MINIPA	TALIPE	WAKIMA

890	TAMBARUMA	MBERA HULANA	HURIBA ANDAGO
891		BUGULU HULANA	TAYABE TIGI
892		WANI HULANA	PANI TALU
893	HORA .	HMABUGO IBURA	LUYABE LEMBE
894		HOYALI IBURA	ELABE KAMIA
895		ANDALI IBURA	NGIYA LUNI
896		MOBE PUYA	PANDAKO HAMUA
897		NGAWARIA PUYA	NOMINI HANDAI
898		WATAPO PUYA	KIMAPE HIMUNI
899		MARA	TAMAPE KAMBALI
900		NEPARA	LIPE KAPIA
901		МОРІ	MINAKO TIKO
902	WABIAGO	TOMBE PUTI	NGIBE PUTI
903		PHEBE PUTI	JENNIFER NGIBE
904	PEPE	URUPU TABUALI	ERIC HAROLI
905		EKAPAGA TABUALI	ALPHONES TATABE
906	MINA	PAI	KARIBE TOGO
907	JAROKA		ELABE TINDINI
908		SOGOAIPA	,
909		SAI	JUSTINA
910		PAPE	HAME TAKIYA
911		POROLI	ANGAI KAUPE
912	AMULI	ALIANA	HAMBUALI TAI
913	TOBANI		PILABE ABERAGO
914	AMOTO	YUFEA	EDEGELA GIMIGA
915		AMODO	SOALEFA SIGINBO
916		NABA	PAIYA HOLOBI
917	PALEPO	HIRIWAKO	LUJIAPE URUPU
918		KENAMO	PETER MAI
919	YALUMA	BIBU	
920	PERAPULI	JAKUANE	KILLY KEN
921		TOGOBIRA	FRED LIYA
922		NGAWE	,
923		ALIWA	OBERT TUNA
924	TAGOBALI	ENOBA	TALIBE TELENE
925	KELA	TIBA	TELABE MORE
926		LETAYA	WILLIAM DANGI
			ALIAWI BINDITEALI /
927		KELO	MARABE BEBOGO
928	KULU	TAYA	WALIPE NOANGI
929		TAPAYAGO	EKALIA LEMBO
930		EKALIAGO	EMOSE HENGEPE
931	<u> </u>	JANGI	PAUL KAMIA

932		IPIRA	PANNY TONDOLI
933		POLI	PAPE HILIWAGO
934		HANDALE	AGO MOLO
935		KIPARO	LEPANI TONGOMA
936	<u></u>	HALIA	APULU HAYAKA
937	IRAKOA	ALĖMBO	WALE WABU
938	MUGAKO	GULA	ALWA DOHALE
939	MORA	SELADO	BABE AYULE
940	HAKU APAKO	WAKUPIA	
941		TOKOPIRA	
942		WARALE	ALIABE TAPELA
943		ТОКОРА	IPANDA PAGALI
	MUGAKO		
944	HONGOLO	LUYA	НАМЕ ТОРІ
945		TAYANDA	JONNY NAPAGAYA
946		YALIBILI	MAX MAPIRA
947		PAPOLE	PORAWI PAMI
948		TURALE	LIMBAWI TAKO
949		WAYA	LUKE KAPIARU
950	TAPU	WALEWA	LAI APAI
951	DAMEA	PALIMA	PK KABI
952	IMINI NE	ULARA	TIGI OLONOGO
953	,	PARABAGUA	PAIJA AKIRU
954		KILAMBU	ALFRED ANDIGI
955	WARILA		MALIAPE KAPIRA
	WARAPIA		-
956	WAYAPA	HEKABA	TAPE HAYAKA
957		HLIA	MALIABE LEGOBI
958		HAMANO	WANDIAGO HOWARD
959		IRABE	ANGOBE PARABU
960		PORAKA	HIYABE PARABU
961	TAGIMA	LIGALI	NOGOBO BULUBE
962	HAMBUALI		ALIAME ABULI
963	MUNA		HALE MALIAME
964	PAKAYA	WIRA	KEN KANDIAWI
965		NAWIRA	PETER POTAPE
			MICHAEL PUTUPAI / JANET
966	MINA	PALEPO	HIMUNI
967	PELA	WANDIBE	PIYABE HAWATI
968	TAKOBALI	KYARA GOBA	AGOBE ABULI
969	TOGO .	HARE	IGIPE KUI
970		HALUMA	DABE KUI
971		PELI	WILLY HINABE
972		TANDU	WANDULE PAKANA

973		MILAWA	KOLOMA TAYA
974	TAMBURUMA	KIPU	TOM TALIYA
975	TAPAMU		EMOS EKANDA
976	DALABA HUMBI	LALE	
977		TOGOBE	
978		YOBOGO	
979	TAGOPALI	HAI HINAWAI	PURALI PALIAWE
980	AKANA LEO		WANDIAGO HAGUABI / HOLE WANGIYU
981	TUNA		PAUL ERE
982	NALIPA		AYABE MORE
983	PAI TUNALI		ERIC YAKANDA
984	TAGABUA		WANDIAGO KOLI
985	TOLA LUYALE		HERI HONDOMO
986	TUNALI		LAMBI LAKUBA
987	TAKUALI	TANABE	MINULE TOMIAPE
988		ALU	WAPE MATHEW
989		ALU	ISREAL TULI
990		HALE TULU	IBANDA HAPIA
991		EMBERA	IPARI HAPIA
992		TIPARA	RUT APA
993		PALEPO	PETER HAYAPITA
994		LAMONO	MIPILIN TONNY
995	KILABA	AWI	YAKILI HARIKI
996		PIRU	MATIALU PORAME
997		MUKAKO	SOTI LAI
998		AYAKA	OLA HARABE
999		BALEBO	HANGU HOMAI
1000		HUNDI BULU	BILI BEBERAYA
1001		MAI BULU	SAKUS HORIAME
1002	PUGUME	TAGAPUA	WANDAGO KOLI
1003		TAGABUA	WANDIAGO ROLI
1004	ANIMA		IBULE KOLI
1005	WARABIA	WAYABA	ELABE PARABU
1006		URINA	OLA TIKI
1007		TAGALI	THOMAS DAI
1008		HOYANI	MYRON IBABE
1009		ALIA	DABE MONE
1010		WABE	PAYABE MUGANI
1011		PORAGA	PAWA JEFFERY
1012		HEGABA	HIYABE PARABU
1013		KEKO	PAYA AYALO
1014		WAREA	MAGABE TRINDIPU

1015		HALIAKO	MARABE ALUNGA
1016		PALIRA	DAVID HABE
1017		TOGAI	ENOBI WAYABE
1018		GANGURIA	MINABE DABE
1019		JAGIRA	ALEMBO HEREBE
1020		KINUME	WILLSON PAWA
1021		IRIBA	HAWI MOYALI
1022		KODANGE	HEBE MBIRAMBIRA
1023		PAYABU	PILABE BABE
1024		NALIBA	EKABE MORE
1025		HALIAKO	DAVID ALUNGA
1026	HAKU	KAMIA HEKE	IBALE TEKE
1027		KAMIA PELABO	GONDO AGOBE
1028		KAMIA MIAYALE	ABE ENOBI
1029		KAMIA WALUWALI	ELAWI ERENE
1030	<u> </u>	KAMIA WABILI	HURIBA ANDAGO
1031		KAMIA TUMBU	PURUPALE TANDUPI
1032		KAMIA KANGAME	ABIALE PAYARI
1033		KAMIA HANDAWI	LEO KAPI
1034		ABAGO WAKURIA	ALEX ALIA
1035		ABAGO WARALA	EKARI JANABE
1036		ABAGO TOKOPA	TOM AKILI
1037		ABAGO HAMAKA	JOHN TANDALI
1038		ABAGO TAWAPE	MAX MABIRA
1039	IKI PONDO	PONDO	ANDIGI
1040		TIGALE	DABARA HOMOGO
1041		TAKAYU	KEITH LAKIRA
1042	TUGUBA TAGORIA	PURI	PARAGUA
1042	TAGORIA	PAIPO	
1043		TULUPAYA	HALIMBU ALIWA SIMON TALIYA
1045		TIMUENDE	
1045	KELA	TUGURIA	PASTOR LIYA
1047	KELA	MAGAYA	HEWA ANOLE
			MINULE MAGAYA
1048		AIANGO	NGOLA WAGALUGO
1049		ELOPA	WILSON SAMARAI
1050		TELAPE	REX WABE
1051		IPALE	JOHN KAUPI
1052		APIAL	MANDAKI TATAPE
1053		TAWI	MICHAEL P
1054		ANGE	ANGAI KELE
1055		ANGAI	KENERY HAGUAI
1056	<u></u>	TINDIPALE	HEGENE TAMBO

1057	·	KEWA	ALI ANO
1058		TIMBALI	WANDAKO KULALI
1059	TUNA	MATANE	IGIBE URULU
1060	HIRALI	TOYAE	PIPI HAYAPIYA
1061		PAGAYA	APE HUPIGO
1062		HUMBI	HJAGUAPI YANGALI
1063		MOLOMA	KAMBALI WAYABE
1064		PELEGO	LUCY ARAWI
1065		HARA	ABE HUBIGO
1066	TALABA HUMBI	LALE	SANDRA ANTON
1067		TAGOBE	JANET LIMBIAWI
1068		JOBEGO	PRISCILA AMOS
1069	TAGUALI	TEKE	TERRY TAMIAKO
1070		GU	JACOB HAWI
1071		KEBU	IRAKO LEPE
1072		WARA KULI	WANDIBE HAWI
1073		WALU	LUKE LUYABE
1074		GAWE	ENGINI KUNI
1075		GOLARA	HABIA HAYABE
1076	HARO	LANDA	PETER PALIPE
1077		PIPILA	ANDALU KEREWA
1078		HAROPA	HONGAI PETER
1079		JARI	AKILI AMENAYA
1080	TOBANI	BURULI	PETER PAWA
1081		PUPU	PILAPE LEMAKO
1082	WARILA	TAMEYA	LIMBAWI PANDALI
1083		IPULE	PETER MAI
1084	TOBE	TANO	PETER MANUS
1085		EMBORA	MAMBI PABENA
1086		МВОТАКО	HALUYA TAYA
1087	ТОМВЕ	LAMALUGU	WAI EKA
1088		ANI IKINI	HAMONO AMAKALI
1089		HOWA	STEVEN J HUMBIGO
1090	HIMIALI	KALU	WAYABE MORE
1091		KAMIALE	MINAI HAMULE
1092		BEBERAYA	HEPARI MINAI
1093		APARUA	MONDOLO HAMULE
1094	TOPE	BAIPU	REGINA HOWE
1095	TAMBUKALI	NGIBE	TERBARA HOMOKO
1096		WANGA	MATHEW AYU
1097		AMIABE	HOWA TABALE
1098		ARIAGO	
1099		IRA HANGU	ANDREW GUBIAWI

1100	TACODALL	T.,,,,,,,,,,	Taun
1100	TAGOPALI	HAI HINAWAI	PURALI PALIAWE
1101	HAITENE	KAKE	MBURIA HEWAIGINI
1102		LAGILAGO	IBULE KUALI
1103	HINI	YUMU	HALUMA TAYA
1104		LEPE	MICHEAL PANI
1105		LALE	GARIBE KAMIA
1106		UNDIA	ANDIPE NARA
1107	TAMEYA		JOHN LEMAKO
1108	WANENI		WANDIPE TUMALI
1109	KAYUMBA	KAYUMBA	ERIC AYULE
1110		KANAKA	ANTHONY HIGUNI
1111		JALE	ROSE ECHA
1112		KEWALI	PALOBE YANGO
1113		ANGA	KARIPE TAPA
1114		KEPAJA	HURIPA ANDAGO
1115		HUNGUALI	TIPAPE ARTIPA
1116		TILA	TAKUBE GA!
1117		LUPU	HALIPU HOMAKO
1118	WABIAGO	WAIYU	ANGOEA PALAGA
1119		TOMBLE YALE	OLIPA ECHA
1120		PAME KURUPU	TIAPE PALAGA
1121	YALUMA	WARI	TILIS TALU
1122	HALE	TIRIKI	WILLIAM TANGI
1123	PEPOGO (PEPE)	BELE	JERRY DAVID
1124		KOE	PETER PIAI
1125		MILIPA	NICKSON HAHAWAPE
1126		LOPEYAME	MAX EKEYA
1127		PURUKUME	PETER HEWARA
1128		YAMA	JAMES WENARI
1129		KUMBAME	HEROWA AGIWA
1130		ALOME	OPERIA KIMI
1131		WAYA	HENGEPE YILIPA
1132		YALIA	PETER PAWI
1133		PULI	RICHARD LIPU
1134		НЕКОМЕ	DAVID HAYUWALE
1135		KUMANI	MARTIN MANDALO
1136		KARUA	AI TIPAYA
1137		YAPAKO	KIRULI MERIA
1138		MORA	TILIPA TMBAPU
1139		TAPAKUALI	JOHNSON AYA
1140		TUGU	GIAPE OPERIA
1141		YAMBA	PETER IRUKA
1142		AYAKE	MINILA KUNDU

1143		ULIA	NOKONI OKOPI
1144		МАКОРА	MATHEW HOYALE
1145		HALU	MAYA PARO
1146		KAYAPU	GINI YAMI
1147		WABETA	OLAPE PARAKUA
1148		KAYA	ESROM SUBUL
1149		YAPOKAPALIPE	TAI TAKUPI
1150	MINA (PALEPO)	HAGU	MALIAPE TALIYA
1151		KARULI	MATIAPE IRIKI
1152		TAGUA 1	JANET HIMUI
1153		TAGUA 2	HENGEPE TUGU
1154		PARIBU	NGULE MINA
1155	MINA (PAI)	HAGU	PELE TOGO
1156		KELA	MAGABETINDIPU
1157		PARIMA	JAWAI JAMES
1158		PARAYA OLAPE	ALUPI AGILO
1159		HONAGA WAROLO	EMOS EGANDA
1160		HAGU KULU UNDIA	EMOS ENGEBE
1161		PAKATA KINAI	MALIAME KANGALI
1162		PATE NOLE	MATHEW MULUPE
1163		HORA PUJA	IRIKU HIMUNI
1164		HONAGA DEWAYA	WABE YARAPU
1165	кома	KENDEJE	
1166		HONAGA WAROLO	EMOS EGANDA
1167		HAGU KULU UNDIA	EMOS ENGEBE
1168		PAKATA KINAI	MALIAME KANGALI
1169		PATE NOLE	MATHEW MULUPE
1170		HORA PUJA	IRIKU HIMUNI
1171		HONAGA DEWAYA	WABE YARAPU
1172		MINA	
1173		MBUTA	LAMBIAGO MBUTA
1174	TUGUBA DAGA	DAGA	
1175		TAMBURUMA	
1176		PARAJA	

OLD WOMAN FROM HIDES 4 APDL 7 WELL HEAD WHO HAVE GRADENS

	CLAN	NAME
1177	KELA	PIRAME PAYABE
1178	TAGUALI	PENDIME HIMU
1179	KELA	YAGILI HIMUNI
1180	KELA	KIPILI HIMUNI
1181	KAYUMBA	YAKAPI HAWI

1182	KAYUMBA	TAGUA KAYAGO
1183	HAGU	AYAGO TONDOLI
1184	PARAYA	TITU AI
1185	KELA	MERAM PAYABE
1186	HAGU	AGO HAGU

CLAN CHIEFS

	CLAN	NAME
1187	HAGU	KANDIAWI HARIGALI
1188	MUGAGO	THOMAS TENDELE
1189	WAYABE	PARABU MOGANI
1190	TAKUALI	NOGOBE KOMBABU
1191	PELA	TELABE PRINDALI
1192	HAGU	IPULE TEGE
1193	HAGU	IGIBE AKO
1194	PARAYA	ENOPI HARALU
1195	AYA	ANDAGI WAMITI
1196	KELAI	ANDIPE PEPEGO
1197	TAMBURUMA	AGIBE PAYABE
1198	WARAPIA	TIKI YULI
1199	IGUANE	HIMUNI HOMOGO
1200	HAGU	KAMBALI TAPELA
1201	PEPE	PINI TAMIALE
1202	PEPE	TUGU TAMIALE
1203	PEPE	AYUWALE LAMBLLIGO
1204	PEPE	PATE MARAKO

WOMANS REPRESENATIVES

	CLAN	NAME
1205	PARA	ANITA TABAGUA
1206	TAWANDA	JABARI HIMUNI
1207	HIDES 4	JANET TOM
1208	MARAGO	JUSTINA ARAWI
1209	NGO	CHARITY DIDIPAYA
1210	PEPE TOMBE	CHRISTINA DUBUGO
1211	KUARA	BETTY MAGA
1212	PARAJA	JAPANA ERIC
1213	PARAPA	LINA ABAGO
1214	НАКИ НАРОКО	PAPAI MINAPE

KOMO RURAL LOCAL LEVEL GOVERNMENT COUNCIL

1215	THOMAS POTAPE
1216	IGIBE NOMA
	KULAI
1217	PONGORALI
1218	ABILE PAJARI
1219	NOA PORAWI
1220	JALIPU ALUNGI
1221	JOHN LIWA
1222	TOM BURA
1223	APULI KALU
1224	AKO WANDIRA
1225	CHARLES DELAKO
1226	MORIS HAEA
	ARAWI
1227	TOMBAYA
1228	HABE PAYABE
•	MS. MATI
1229	YAPARIA
1230	BLACK MINAI
1231	EGAWI PARAPU
1232	TANDALI PUNGA
1233	THOMAS TAMBO
1234	TAYA PAGAYALI
	MRS. TABALI
1235	HALUMA
1236	PARADA PIPIJA
1237	URUBU ANDIWI
1238	PETER IRUBA
1239	PETER PURANI

YOUTH REPRESENTATIVES

	NAME
	ENDORSE
1240	AYAGALI
1241	HARALU HAGUAI
1242	HURIPA ANDAGO
1243	TOM MINAPE
1244	ANDREA TIMUKU
1245	JAPILA MARAGO

KOKOPO UBSA SIGNATORIES

		
1246	KOKOPO UBSA	ERIC HAWAI

1247	KOKOPO UBSA	PAJAPE PAPE
1248	KOKOPO UBSA	KANDIAWI HARIGALI
1249	KOKOPO UBSA	DANIEL WALIPE
1250	KOKOPO UBSA	TAIYA KULIYA
1251	KOKOPO UBSA	німині номоко
1252	KOKOPO UBSA	PARAPU MUGANI
1253	KOKOPO UBSA	TELEBE MOYALI
1254	KOKOPO UBSA	EKA YALE
1255	KOKOPO UBSA	EGA TAMUALI
1256	KOKOPO UBSA	LINA APAGO
1257	KOKOPO UBSA	PATRICIA WAKO
1258	KOKOPO UBSA	TAIYA TALA
1259	KOKOPO UBSA	TONY LAMBIAWI
1260	KOKOPO UBSA	ABULI KALO
1261	KOKOPO UBSA	TEYABE AYALO
1262	KOKOPO UBSA	IGIBE AKO
1263	KOKOPO UBSA	JOHN PEKO

KOKOPO UBSA SIGNATORIES (NOT INCLUDED IN CLAN LIST)

ERIC HAWAI
KANDIAWI
HARIGALI
DANIEL WALIPE
TAIYA KULIYA
HIMUNI
НОМОКО
PARAPU
MUGANI
TELEBE MOYALI
EKA YALE
EGA TAMUALI
LINA APAGO
PATRICIA WAKO
TAIYA TALA
TONY LAMBIAWI
ABULI KALO
TEYABE AYALO
IGIBE AKO

ADDITIONAL LIST AS OF 18 NOVEMBER 2009

	CLAN	SUB-CLAN	NAME
1280	PATE	HALIMBU	HAPOLO HALIMBU

1281	PATE	NANGAWA	HARI AGUWALA
1282	PATE	номоко	ANGI AIGO
1283	PATE	PILIAPA	JOHN PATE
1284	PATE	LENDEPE	NOKOME UNIREKO
1285	PATE	KULA	AYALE PATE
1286	PÁTE	ALE	JABILI TYAPU
1287	PATE	TAPALUNGU	MOROBA MAROKO
1288	PATE	LINDU	HAME TENDE
1289	PATE	JAGO	IALIPE
1290	PATE	WAJU	WANDIEPE MALI
1291	PATE	LIPU	JAPILI PATE
1292	PATE	HALIMBU	ERIC MARAKO
1293	PATE	NANGAWA	ELAGA PATE
1294	PATE	номоко	PULE LUNIE
1295	PATE	PILIAPA	VINCENT PAKI
1296	PATE	LENDEPE	JAINDAME MARAKO
1297	PATE	KULA	ANGAI AIGO
1298	PATE	ALE	DAVID LEMBO
1299	PATE	TAPALUNGU	JOHN PATE
1300	PATE	LINDU	AYALE MORE
1301	PATE	JAGO	TOM WAYIAPE
1302	PATE	ULAW	LUKE HAMULE
1303	PATE	LIPU	TIKI ALIMBU
1304	TAGUALI	IRA	AGILI TAYA
1305	TAGUALI	ALU	RITA ELAPE
1306	TAGUALI	NOKOAPA	EVELLINE MATHEW
1307	TAGUALI	PALEBO	CICILIA AUWI
1308	TAGUALI	ALU	TINA TOM
1309	TAGUALI	NOKOAPA	IPILI ABIA

PASTORS WHO TOOK PART DURING THE DURATION OF THE FORUM

		NAME
1310	PASTOR	DAVID HABE
1311	PASTOR	THOMAS TINDIBU
1312	PASTOR	JOHN HABIALU
1313	PASTOR	ARAWI KILI
1314	PASTOR	ANGAI WALAI
1315	PASTOR	DADE HARE
1316	PASTOR	HENRY ALUNI
1317	PASTOR	PETRUS
1318	PASTOR	ALIGO NOMA

1319	PASTOR	HANDAPE PABAJA
1320	PASTOR	TONGOLE IBIRU
1321	PASTOR	ANDI GUYAI
1322	PASTOR	AIYAGO AGULI
1323	PASTOR	DADE HAYAKA
1324	PASTOR	WAYADE IMORE
1325	PASTOR	PALIBE GORIGO
1326	PASTOR	KAMIA WALIAMBE
1327	PASTOR	IMBA IPAKO
1328	PASTOR	HOWARD HALE
1329	PASTOR	JOHN SDA